EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

A. Introduction

Sec.13 of Republic Act No. 7227 created the corporate body known as the Subic Bay
Metropolitan Authority (SBMA). The SBMA is the operating and implementing arm of
the Government of the Philippines in developing the 67,000-hectare area of Subic Bay
Freeport (SBF) into a self-sustaining industrial, commercial, financial, and investment and

academe center to generate, among others, employment opportunities in and around the
Zone,

The SBMA plays a key role in the national government's efforts to achieve international
competitiveness and provide for its integration with the global economy.

To accomplish this, it shall embark to manage and develop the ship repair and shipbuilding
facilities, container port, as well as the oil storage and refueling stations; attract and
matintain local and foreign investments to promote the economic and social development
of the country primarily in Central Luzon; establish and regulate the operation and
maintenance of utilities, services and infrastructure; operate directly and indirectly
tourism-related activities; and protect the Freeport's forests,

We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Public Sector Standards on Auditing
and we believe that it provided a reasonable basis for the audit results. The audit covered
the examination, on test basis, of the accounts and financial transactions of the SBMA for
the year ending December 31, 2016. The audit was conducted to (a) ascertain the level of
assurance that may be placed on management assertions on the financial statements; (b)
recommend agency improvement opportunities; and (¢} determine the extent of
mmplementation of prior year’s audit recommendations.

B. Financial Highlights

The financial position and results of operations for CYs 2016 and 2015 are shown below:

(In Thousands of Pesos)

Financial Position 2016 2015 A{::;::;se/ (Decreas;;‘)
Fotal Assets 30,018,781 | 29,235,554 783,227 2.68%
Total Liabilities 11,720,095 | 11,190,156 529,939 4.74%
Stockholders® Equity 18,208,686 1 18,045,398 253,288 1.40%

Results of Operations 2016 2015 Aﬁ;ﬂ;ﬁ“’ (De""aﬁj
Total Revennes 2,890,890 2,745,148 145,742 5.31%
(Fotal Expenses 2,211,074 1,979,073 232,001 11.72%
Total Net Income 679,816 766,075 (86,259) (11.26%)




The approved Corporate Operating Budget for Calendar Year (CY) 2016 is presented
below together with the comparative figures for CY 2015.

Corporate Operating Budget — {In Thousands Ofll:l ij-oei)se / (Decrease)
(COB) 2016 2015 Amount o

Personnel Services (PS) 938,447 617,303 321,144 52.02%
Maintenance and Other Operating
Expenses (MOOE) 3,770,686 1,274,554 2496,132 1 195.84%

Operating Expenses 707,612 706,218 |

Other MOOE 1,033,966 568,336

Power Charges (HHIC-Phil,

Inc.) 2,029,108 0
Capital Outlays (CO) 117,943 95,223 22,720 23.86%
Total 4,827,076 1,987,080 2,839,996 | 142.92%

As can be gleaned from the above table, there was a 195.84% increase in the budget for
MOQOE due to the additional National Government Subsidy for the power charges of the
Hanjin Heavy Industries and Construction Philippines, Inc. (HHIC-Phil, Inc.), one of the
SBMA’s major investors which was granted subsidy under Executive Order (EQ) 701,

C. Independent Auditor’s Report

We rendered a qualified opinion on the fairness of presentation of the financial statements
of the Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority as of December 31, 2016 because the (a)
accuracy, validity and reliability of the Property Plant and Equipment accounts could not
be ascertained due to (i) unsubstantiated carrying amount of P24.1 billion representing
80.42% of the entity’s total assets; and (ii) non-application of the capitalization threshold
of 15,000 which resulted in the overstatement of the PPE by at least P8.4 million; (b) total
balance of the various inventory accounts amounting to P109.8 million which includes
non-existent items totaling to P86.7 million or 78.9% of the total reported inventories
remained unsubstantiated; and (c) reported balance of the Construction In Progress
accounts could not be relied upon due to unsupported ending balance of P16 million and
the unreconciled difference in the balances of the controlling and the subsidiary accounts
in the Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS) amounting to P2.6 billion.

For the above noted deficiencies, we recommended that Management (a) (i) consider the
upgrading of the existing IFMS as well as the system being used by the PPMD or the
acquisition of new functional systems whichever is more advantageous to the entity,
pending the materialization of the more integrated Enterprise Resource Planning System
(ERPS); (ii) prioritize the conduct of a complete inventory of all property, plant and
equipment items owned by SBMA and the reconciliation of the accounting, the land and
asset department, and the property department records by augmenting the personnel
assigned to the inventory team in order to establish the actual existence, quantity and
amount of the same by effecting the necessary adjustments in order to present fairly the
account balances in the financial statements; and (iii} effect the necessary adjustments
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pertaining to the capitalization threshold on PPE, and to henceforth adopt the existing
regulation on the same; (b) (i) conduct a thorough study and proper planning to determine
the appropriate and effective automated system that will address the needs of the agency;
(if) augment the workforce involved in the inventory management system; and (iii) direct
the concerned heads of the accounting and the property departments to closely monitor the
progress/status of the reconciliation of the records, the preparation, maintenance and
submission of the required documents such as the Stock Cards, the Supplies Ledger Cards,
the Reports of Supplies and Materials Issued, and the Reports on the Physical Count of
Inventories, among others; and (c) (i) account for the beginning balances of the CIP
accounts by submitting subsidiary records/details thereof as uploaded in the IFMS, for our
verification and tracking of the movements of the amounts recognized; and (i) identify the
reconciling items and make the necessary corrections/adjustments in order to arrive at
reconciled ending balances of the general and the subsidiary ledger accounts.

D. Summary of Other Significant Audit Observations and Recommendations

Summarized below are the significant audit observations noted during the audit and the
corresponding recommendations,

1. Total receivables were understated by at least $21,944.46 or £1,091,103.41 due to
unrecorded receivable from Hualong International, Inc. Moreover, of the Total Receivables
of P4,268,222,966.43 for locators and residents as of September 30, 2016,
P1,547,852,059.59 or 36.26% (excluding the dormant accounts of Financial Building Corp,
Home Guaranty Corporation and Legenda International Resorts Limited aggregating to
P2,050,221,252.81) were doubtful since their existence and correctness were not
ascertained. Relative to this, a discrepancy in the confirmed balances amounting to
P132,457,871.35 was noted. Likewise, instances of laxity in the implementation of the
provisions of the lease agreements and existing policies on delinquent/defaulting lessees
have been noted which further resulted in uncollected accounts. Lastly the inefficiency of
Management to collect receivables resulted in the accumulation of Doubtful Accounts of
P3,908,308,166.14 or 86.73% of the Total Receivables, leaving only a net realizable value
(NRV) of P598,082,488.46 or 13.27% as of December 31, 2016. (Observation No. 4)

We recommended that Management (a) direct the accounting department and the
concerned units to study, determine and effect the appropriate accounting treatment for the
uncollected fines and penalties from Hualong Inc., and recognize the same in the books if
the recognition criteria are met pursnant to PAS 39; (b) review the claims of SBMA against
PAGCOR, Manila Times College of Subic, Inc. and Philippine Coastal Storage and
Pipeline Corporation as well as the other accounts with pending unresolved issues and take
appropriate steps to expedite and arrive at concrete resolutions which are advantageous on
the part of the eatity; (c) strengthen, and improve the control and monitoring system fo stop
the lessee’s practice of assigning the housing units to other parties/lessees without prior
clearance from SBMA; and (d) (i) revisit the existing policies and sanctions for the
uncollected financial considerations due from lessees especially the proper implementation
thereof within the prescribed period as stipulated in the lease agreements; (ii) institute
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reforms in the enforcement of the lease agreement provisions as well as in the monitoring
and collection of all amounts due from lessees in order to curtail the increasing rate of
uncollectible accounts, and thus promoting the interest of the SBMA.

2. The correctness, validity and reliability of the reported balances of the Accounts
Payable amounting to P146,956,682.91 as of December 31, 2016 could not be determined
due to (a) the results of the confirmation showing net discrepancies of $248,535.32; and
(b) the long outstanding payables aggregating to P71,496,901.05 or 48.65% of the reported
balance as of year-end contrary to the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting and
Section 73 of the Manual on the New Government Accounting System (MNGAS)
requiring the faithful representation of the accounts in the Financial Statements thereby
affecting the total liabilities figure as well as that of the corresponding expense accounts,
(Observation No.5) :

We recommended that Management (a) continuously analyze the discrepancies noted in
the confirmation and effect the adjustments where necessary; and (b) ensure that recording
of accounts payable is based on valid claims evidenced by actual delivery of goods and
rendition of services. A review of the long outstanding payables should be made and effect
necessary management actions thereon. If deemed necessary, revert the corresponding
amounts to the appropriate equity account in accordance with existing rules and
regulations.

3. The balances of 41 asset and 24 lhability accounts totaling to $26,812,209,632.12
and P10,721,472.57 representing 89.32% and 0.09% of total assets and total liabilities
respectively, remained unsubstantiated and/ or dormant for more than five years (based
on a 2011 cut-off), thus, casting doubt on their validity and reliability thereby affecting the
relevance and faithful representation of the financial information as presented in the
Financial Statements contrary to the requirements set forth under the Conceptual
Framework for Financial Reporting, Philippine Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, and
Sections 72 and 73 of the Manual on the New Government Accounting System (MNGAS).
(Observation No. 6)

We recommended that Management (a) require the Accountant to exert more efforts to
review the non-moving/dormant accounts, locate the necessary documents to substantiate
their balances, and effect the necessary corrections/ adjustments; (b) take appropriate
action to recover the amounts due arising from the robbery that transpired in 2005 and to
substantiate the missing peso cash on hand account balance and effect applicable measures
to recover the same; and (c) see to it that the presentation of all financial information are
in accordance with the Conceptual Framework and existing standards in order to be useful
to all stakeholders and users thereof.

4. The accounting department failed to comply with the provisions of PAS 36 on the
assessment of assets and recognition of any impairment thereof thus, failing to present a
more reliable carrying value of the assets considered obsolete, unserviceable or damaged,
therefore affecting the fair presentation of the assets and the income in the Statement of
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Financial Posittion and in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, respectively.
(Observation No. 7)

We recommended that Management direct the accounting department to comply with PAS
36 by assessing the conditions of its assets subject for impairment and to recognize the
impairment loss if warranted, to reflect the realizable value of the assets which is also
necessary for the Financial Statements to fairly present the account balances and thus,
become more useful to the stakeholders and users of the same.

5. Disbursement amounting to One Billion Four Hundred Sixty Six Million Six
Hundred Eighty Eight Thousand Pesos (P1,466,688,000.00) representing the power
subsidy granted to HHIC-PHIL, Inc. for the period November 2009-December 2015 was
made in spite of the absence of the proper validation of the claims made which is an
indication of lapses in the Corporation’s internal control system, thus, casting doubt on the
propriety, validity, accuracy and reliability of the huge amount involved in the said
transaction. (Observation No. 8)

We recommended that Management adbere to the prescribed financial controls prior to
disbursement of funds especially those involving huge amounts in order to fully safeguard
the interest of the government and likewise avoid any audit suspension or disallowance.

6. The entity’s mandate on environmental protection and management could have
been better attained had there been more adequate logistics and equipment support to
ensure the full implementation of and monitoring of the compliance to environmental
standards within the Subic Freeport Zone (SFZ). Likewise, the objective of providing
world-class facilities and services responsive to the needs of stakeholders could have been
better achieved had the four marine vessels (two patrol, one rescue, and one garbage
collection and firefighting vessel) and the eight transportation equipment (three garbage
compactors and five dump trucks) intended for solid waste disposal been fully operational.
(Observation No. 9)

We recommended that Management revisit its priorities to include actions geared towards
addressing the mandate of the SBMA as a whole, specifically in the attainment of its goal
of making SBMA a safer, healthier, and a cleaner place as embodied in the agency’s set
goals and objectives.

7. Total budget for GAD during the year in the amount of $5,412,620.00 was 97.8%
below the required threshold as set forth under the Philippine Council on Women/ National
Economic and Development Authority/Department of Budget and Management
(PCW/NEDA/DBM) Joint Circular No. 2012-01 thereby failing to fully mstitutionalize
gender mainstreaming within the entity. Likewise, lapses have been noted in the GAD focal
point system’s project implementation as in the case of diaper changing stations which
remained uninstalled, and the continuous lack of GAD impact assessment tool. Moreover,
lapses in the documentation of GAD-related activities/transactions have been noted.
(Observation No. 10)




We recommended that Management direct the whole GAD Focal Point System as well as
all other units concerned to (a) comply with the existing guidelines for the preparation of
the GAD plans and budgets; (b) improve further the project implementation schemes in
order to fully attain the desired outcomes as duly assessed and validated; and (c) comply

with the necessary documentary requirements related to all GAD transactions in order to
avoid audit suspensions.

8 Withholding taxes amounting to $128,384,470.31 were remitted to the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR) within the required period in accordance with Revenue Regulation
No. 2-98 dated April 17, 1998 and Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 17-2003 dated
March 31, 2003, However, taxes withheld pertaining to previous years in the amount of
P666,235.51 remained unremitted due to unreconciled records. (Observation No. 11)

We recommended that Management instruct the concemed Accounting Department
personnel to trace and reconcile the available records pertaining to previous years and make
sure that all taxes due the government are withheld and remitted to the BIR within the
prescribed period as per BIR Revenue Regulation No. 2-98 and Revenue Memorandum
Circular No. 17-2003.

9. Premium contributions, loan amortizations and other amounts due to Government
Service Insurance System (GSIS) were deducted and duly remitted to the System in
compliance with R.A. No. 8291, the Government Service Insurance System law of 1997,
and its Revised IRR. However, the amount of P150,661.72 pertaining to forwarded
balances from previous years remained unaccounted for as of year-end. (Observation No.
12)

We recommended that Management instruct the concerned Accounting Department
personnel to trace, review and reconcile ali documents supporting the Due to GSIS account
and effect adjustments, if necessary.

E. Summary of Total Suspensions, Disallowances and Charges at year-end

Audit suspensions and disallowances amounting to P970,370.42 and P15,451,322.12,
respectively, remained unsettled as of year-end contrary to COA Circular No. 2009-006
dated September 15, 2009. Likewise, audit disallowances prior to the effectivity of the
aforementioned Circular amounting to P140,605,881.78 remained unsettied.

F. Status of Implementation of Prier Year’s Unimplemented Aundit
Recommendations

Out of the 29 audit recommendations contained in the Annual Audit Report for CY 2015,
nine were fully implemented while 20 were partiaily implemented.
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PART I- AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




Republic of the Philippines

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

Regional Office No. ill
City of San Fernando, Pampanga

Telephone No, (045) 455-4272 « Telefax No. (045) 455-4266 «  Website: www.coa. gov.ph

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors
Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority
Subic Bay Freeport Zone, Olongapo City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Subic Bay Metropolitan
Authority which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 3 1,2016, and
the statement of comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and

other explanatory information.

Management s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with State accounting principles, and for such intemal control as

~ management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with Philippine Public Sector Standards on
Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance whether the financial statements are free
from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s
Judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our qualified audit opinion.




Bases for Qualified Opinion

As discussed in Part II of this report, the (a) accuracy, validity and reliability of the Property
Plant and Equipment accounts could not be ascertained due to (i) unsubstantiated carrying
amount of P24.1 billion representing 80.42% of the entity’s total assets; and (7i) non-
application of the capitalization threshold of $15,000 which resulted in the overstatement
of the PPE by at least $8.4 million; (b) total balance of the various mventory accounts
amounting to 109.8 million which includes non-existent items totaling to P86.7 million
or 78.9% of the total reported inventories remained unsubstantiated; and (c) reported
balance of the Construction In Progress accounts could not be relied upon due to
unsupported ending balance of P16 million and the unreconciled difference in the balances

of the controlling and the subsidiary accounts in the Integrated Financial Management
System (IFMS) amounting to 2.6 billion.

Qualifted Opinion

In our opinion, except for the effects and possible effects of the matters described in the
Bases for Qualified Opinion paragraph, the financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority as of
December 31,2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended
in accordance with State accounting principles.

COMMISSION ON AUDIT

A. YACAT
OIC-Supewrising Auditor

February 28, 2017







SUBIC BAY METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31, 2016 ‘
(With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2015)
(In Thousands of Pesos)
Notes 2016 2015
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and Cash Equivalent 4 1,965,494 2,759,176
Receivables 5 301,883 219,107
Inventories 6 109,835 107,844
Miscellaneous Assets 7 11,637 12,596
Total Current Assets 2,388,849 3,098,723
Non-Current Assets
Investments 8 2,531,897 842,126
Receivables 5 296,199 260,637
Property, Plant and Equipment 9 24,158,391 24,583,772
Other Assets 10 643,445 450,296
_ Total Non-Current Assets 27,629,932 26,136,831
TOTAL ASSETS 30,018,781 29,235,554
LIABILITIES AND GOVERNMENT EQUITY |
Current Liabilities
Payables and Accrued Expenses 11 134,509 195,072
Loans Payable 12 563,844 325,907
Accrued Interest 20,774 18,853
Deferred Credits to Income 13 76,450 49,401
Dividend Payable 177,298 0
Security Deposits and Advance Rental 14 270,054 222,381
Trust Liabilities 15 545,989 384,310
Total Current Liabilities 1,788,918 1,195,924
Non-Current Liabilities '
Payables and Accrued Expenses 11 222,618 170,418
Loans Payable - net of current portion 12 5,986,006 6,321,614
Deferred Credits to Income 13 3,070,319 2,981,549
Security Deposits and Advance Rental 14 652,234 520,651
Total Non-Current Liabilities 9,931,177 9,994,232
Total Liabilities 11,720,095 11,190,156
Stockholders' Equity 18,298,686 18,045,398
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND GOVERNMENT
EQUITY 30,018,781 29,235,554

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




SUBIC BAY METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR L.OSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2015)
(In Thousands of Pesos)

Notes 2016 2015

REVENUES
Leases 1,445,850 1,342,240
Port Services 945,181 933,583
Tourism Services 13,722 12,631
Other Operating Income 21 651,529 531,304

Total Revenues 3.056,282 2,819,758
OPERATING EXPENSES
Depreciation 452,939 453,939
Bad Debts Expense 296,666 305,132
Salaries and Benefits 735,954 518,169
Power and Water 86,082 84,342
Supplies, Materials and Fuels 33,604 40,185
Loss on Revaluation 20 165,392 74,610
Other Expenses 22 516,816 491,384

Total Operating Expenses Before Income Tax 2,288,053 1,967,761
Provision for Income Tax 88,413 85,922

Total Operating Expenses After Income Tax 2,376,466  2.053,683
JOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 679.816 766,075

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




SUBIC BAY METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN GOVERNMENT EQUITY

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2015)

(In Thousands of Pesos)
Notes 2016 2015

Paid-in Capital 16 ' '

Balance at beginning of year 19,942,815 19942815

Additions/(deductions) 0 0

Balance at end of year 19,942,815 19,942,815
Appraisal Surplus ' 17

Balance at beginning of year ' 31,767 31,767

Partial realization of Appraisal Surplus 0 0

Balance at end of year 31,767 31,767
Invested Capital-Held in Trust 18

Balance at beginning of year 307 307

Additions/(deductions) 0 0

Balance at end of year 307 307
Deonated Capital 19

Balance at beginning of year 37,618 37,618

Additions/(deductions) 0 0

Balance at end of year 37,618 37,618
Retained Earnings

Balance at beginning of year (1,967,109) (2,297,824)

Net income (loss) for the year 679,816 766,075

Dividend Paid to the National Government (323,215) (437,753)

Correction of fundamental errors (103,313) 2,393

Balance at end of year (1,713,821)  (1,967,109)
TOTAL GOVERNMENT EQUITY 18,298,686 18,045,398

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.
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SUBIC BAY METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

For the Year Ended December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2015)
{(In Thousands of Pesos)

Note 2016 2015
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash received from customers 1,137,563 1,192,654
Sale of Unserviceable Properties 0 0
Cash received in payment of customers' account 1,265,146 1,129,272
Cash received from customers for unearned income 731,619 403,954
Interest received {3,391 9,377
Customers' security deposits 31,123 12,106
Trust fund received non-customers 2,535,243 377,627
Cash paid to employees and suppliers (1,505,449) (1,098,779)
Refund of customers' security deposits (1,198) o7
Cash paid from non-customers' trust fund (2,321,210)  (263,057)
Advances - Payment of FSC's Manpower Reduction 0 0
Advances to Contractors 0 (13,908)
Cash paid for financing charges (149.181)  (132,657)
Net cash provided by operating activities 1,714,265 1,615,892
Cash Flows From Investing Activities:
Investment in Bonds 0 0
Restricted Cash (SLBP)- SBMA Debt Service Account 0 0
Investment on Dollar Time Deposit - Sinking Fund 0 0
Investinent in Pollar Bond /TD(LBP) (1,695,603)  (215,666)
Proceeds on Sale of Disposal of Scrap Materials ] 0
Subic Bay Exhibition Convention Center 0 0
Joint Venture - Subic Water 20,000 16,000
Joint Venture - Subic Bay International Terminal Corp. 0 0
Port Dev. - JBIC II & locally funded projects 0 0
Capital expenditures - Local (55,243) (35,954)
Net cash used in investing activities (1,730,846)  (235,620)
Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net borrowings 0 0
Loan Proceeds - LandBank 0 105,884
Principal loan repayments - WB1 0 0
(Gain on repayment - WB1 0 0
Principal loan repayments - WB2 (109,250) (98.405)
Loss on repayment - WB2 106 {266)
Principal loan repayments - JBIC 1 (17,000) {14,693)
Loss on repayment - JBIC 1 139 32)
Principal loan repayments - JBIC 2 (218,331) (190,869
Loss on repayment - JBIC 2 (13,518) (5,544)
Principal loan repayments - Eximbank ¢ 0
Loss on repayment - Eximbank ¢ 0
Repayment of Loan - LBP (257,296) 0
Gain on Repayment of LBP Loan (155) 0
Restricted Cash ($LBP)- SBMA Debt Service Account (66,474) (13,954)
Payment of Dividend (145,918)  (437,753)
DBP- Trust Fund Various 24,169 11,506
* LBP- Trust Fund Various {159,753) (92,207)
Placement of Dollar Time Deposit - Sinking fund 0 j
SBDMC's Reimbursement to SBMA for Loan Repayment 0 G
Dividend to National Government 0 0
Net cash used in financing activities (963,281)  (736,333)
Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash 186,180 118,786
Net (Decrease) Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalent (793,682) 762,725
Cash and Cash Equivalent at Beginning of Year 2,759,176 1,996,451
Cash and Cash Equivalents at the End of the Year 4 19654 L1039,

See accompanying Notes to Financial Statements.




SUBIC BAY METROPOLITAN AUTHORITY
Notes to Financial Statements
For the year ended December 31, 2016

(With Comparative Figures for December 31, 2015)
In Thousands of Pesos

1. PROFILE

The Administration

Sec.13 of Republic Act No. 7227 created the corporate body known as the Subic Bay
Metropolitan Authority (SBMA). The SBMA is the operating and implementing arm of
the Government of the Philippines in developing the 67,000-hectare area of Subic Bay
Freeport (SBF) into a self-sustaining industrial, commercial, financial, and investment

and academe center to generate, among others, employment opportunities in and around
the Zone.

On March 13, 1992, the Philippine Congress passed Republic Act 7227, known as the
Bases Conversion and Development Act of 1992, creating the Subic Bay Freeport in
anticipation of the pullout of the US naval base facilities. Section 13 of RA 7227 created
the Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority (SBMA) and with free port incentives, an
amendment granting tax and duty-free privileges and incentives was inserted during the

bicameral committee hearings.

The area for development comprises of 13,600 hectares of leasable land (based on the
actual survey made by the DENR) and 53,852 hectares of protected area covering the
Subic Bay Freeport (SBF) or what was the former US Naval facility in Subic Bay into a
self-sustaining tourism, industrial, commercial, financial, and investment center to
generate employment opportunities.

Agency Roles

The SBMA plays a key role in the national govcmmént's efforts to achieve international
competitiveness and provide for its integration with the global economy.

To accomplish this, it shall embark to manage and develop the ship repair and
shipbuilding facilities, container port, as well as the oil storage and refueling stations;
attract and maintain local and foreign investments to promote the economic and social
development of the country primarily in Central Luzon; establish and regulate the
operation and maintenance of utilities, services and infrastructure; operate directly and
indirectly tourism-related activities; and protect the Freeport's forests.

- SBMA Vision

By 2030, the Greater Subic Bay Area shall be a (the) premier Freeport Zone in Asia




In line with this goal and vision, SBMA shall undertake to create a business environment
that will make us the most competitive Freeport Zone in the country and within the Asian
region. To accomplish this, it shall embark on the following:

a. To make way for a leading and green port. With the depth of the bay, clean air
and water, and biodiversity as its advantage, SBMA aims to be the busiest port in the
Philippines and Asia by moving cargoes and tourists by the sea. It shall develop a
super yacht haven and a cruise ship destination.

b. To create a major tourist destination. We envision Subic as the theme park
capital of the country, a venue for major sports events, luxury destinations for casinos
and shopping, and medical tourism.

¢. To continue to develop the most protected environment in Southeast Asia.
Residential areas are envisioned to rise in the heart of nature for local and
international elite offering high class modern living and investments. Consequently, a
bigger per capita income for Freeport constituents is foreseen that will produce more
purchasing power that will uplift their lifestyle.

Today, the SBMA continues to attract local and foreign investments for the socio-
economic benefit of nearby local communities, as well as Central Luzon and the rest of
the country; to sustain an investment-friendly and stable business environment and assist
investors in setting up their businesses by providing quality services; to pursue the
development of the Freeport not only as an investment site but also as a tourism
destination; and to promote environmental protection amidst rapid development.

SBMA Mission

- To generate broad-based business and job opportunities by offering unique maritime,

eco-tourism and high-tech industrial services and infrastructure to the world as a
showcase of Philippine economic progress and development.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION AND STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention

Statement of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS).

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires SBMA to exercise its judgement in
the process of applying its accounting policies.




Changes in assumptions may have a significant mmpact on the financial statements in the
period the assumptions changed. Management believes that the underlying assumptions

are appropriate and that SBMA’s financial statements therefore present the financial
position and results fairly.

Adoption of New Government Accounting System (NGAS) Revised Chart of Accounts

The accompanying financial statements were prepared using National Government
Accounting System (NGAS) Revised Chart of Accounts per COA Circular No. 2008-01
dated January 29, 2008 superseding COA Circular Nos. 2003-01, 2004-02 and 2004-008

- dated June 17, 2003, April 29, 2004 and September 20, 2004, respectively.

3. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand, demand deposits, other short-term
highly liquid investments with original maturities of one year or less.

Receivables

Receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, receivables are reported net
of allowance for bad debts. A provision for impairment (allowance for doubtful accounts)
is established when there is objective evidence that SBMA will not be able to collect all
amounts to be received. Significant financial difficulties of the counterparty, probability
that the counterparty will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganization, and default in
payments are considered indicators that the amount to be received is impaired.

The Allowance for Doubtful Accounts is established based at certain percentage that
considers the age of Accounts Receivable. As approved per Board Resolution No. 14-04-
5063 issued on the 22 day of May 2014, “Revised Policy on Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts”, the following table is used as a basis in determining the Allowance for
Doubtful Accounts.

Revised Policy on Allowance for Doubtful Accounts is as follows:

Age of Accounts Receivable Percentage of Allowance
1-30 days _ 0%
31-60 days - 5%
61-90 days | 10%
91-120 days ] 15%
121-150 days BB 20%
151-180 days 30%
181 days to 1 year 40%
Over 1 year to 2 years 50%
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Age of Accounts Receivable Percentage of Allowance
Over 2 years to 3 years 65%
Over 3 years to 4 years : 80%
Over 5 years 100%
Bond Investment

Straight line method is being adopted in a.mortizing bond premium,

Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost and issuances are recorded using the moving-average

- method. The inventories stated in the financial statements are items held for use in the
operation of the agency.

Investments
a.  Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which SBMA has the power to govern the financial and
operating policies generally accompanying a shareholding of an interest of more than one
half of the voting rights or otherwise has power to govern the financial and operating
policies, and are consolidated.

b.  Associates

An associate is an entity, including an unincorporated entity such as a partnership, over
which SBMA has significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary nor an interest in a
joint venture. :

The equity method is used in accounting for investments in common stock of subsidiaries
which are controlled, directly or indirectly, by the investor; and investees where the
investment in voting common stock gives the investor the ability to exercise significant
influence over the operating and financial policies of an investee even though the investor
holds 50% or less of the voting stock.

Percentages of ownership in investments in shares of common stock of the following
subsidiary and associates are as follows:

Percentage of Ownership
Freeport Service Corporation 100.00
Subic Techno-park 49.99
SBDMC 48.60
Subic Water ' 20.00
BCDA and CDC-SCADC 33.30
Subic Bay Yacht Club 0.37
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Investments in shares of common stocks of Freeport Service Corporation (FSC) are
accounted for under the cost method. Adoption of the equity method of accounting was
deferred since their records were destroyed by fire last J anuary 2004. Also, the deferral of
the use of equity method of accounting was concurred by the Commission on Audit
pending completion of audit of the 2003 financial transactions and the resolution of the
qualification in the audit opinion of FSC's 2002 financial statements because of the wide
disparities between the gross profit rates of FSC's business units with the actual gross
profit rates of the services being rendered. The Commission gave an adverse opinion on

the financial statements of FSC for the years that followed rendering the financial
statements unoreliable. :

Although SBMA is able to exercise significant influence over its investments in SBDMC
and SCADC, the cost method is being adopted in accounting for the said investments.
Investment in SBDMC is accounted under the cost method pending resolution of issues
on the proper accounting of transactions affecting both SBMA and SBDMC concerning
the ICDF loan. In our inquiry with the SCAD council, the SCADC is still non-
operational, a council called SCAD council is managing the pre operational stage of the
SCADC. No Financial Reports for the SCADC is available, thus, pending their actual
operation, the cost method of accounting is used for the said investment.

The investments in shares of common stocks of STEP and Subic Water are accounted
under the equity method.

Property, Plant and Equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation, The cost
of an asset comprises its acquisition cost and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to working condition for its intended use. Expenditures for additions and major
improvements are capitalized while expenditures for repairs and maintenance are charged
to expense as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the Straight-Line Method that is, Asset Cost less
Estimated Residual/ Salvage Value over the estimated useful life of the asset. The
~ estimated useful life of the asset was based on COA Circular 2003-007.

An item of PPE is derecognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on de-

recognition of the asset is included in the income statement for the period.

Revenue and Expense Recognition

The modified accrual basis of accounting for income and expenses is being adopted.
Penalty on past due accounts and contested accounts receivable are taken up as income
upon collection.
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Revenues are derived mainly from leasing of land and buildings, seaport and airport
operation, tourism, and from various services being rendered by the agency to attend to
the needs of the locators, residents and other parties in their conduct of business inside

the Freeport like medical services, equipment, furniture and fixtures rentals, PPMD
services, regulatory services etc.

Foreion Currency Transactions

The peso equivalent of dollar denominated transactions is booked at the Philippine
Dealing System (PDS) reference rate at transaction date. Any difference in exchange rate
between two related transactions for operations is charged to profit or loss on foreign
exchange while differences in exchange rate on transactions pertaining to capital outlays
is included in the cost of the asset up to the amount of lower of replacement cost and the
amount recoverable from the use or sale of the asset. All foreign currency monetary
items (Cash, Account Receivable, Loan Payables, Security Deposit) are revalued at the
closing rate at the end of the month.

4. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENT

This account consists of the following;

2016 2015
Cash in Bank- Foreign Currency 1,262,327 2,136,791
Cash i Bank- Local Currency 699,136 614,375
Cash on Hand- Foreign Currency 186 296
Cash on Hand- Local Currency 3,842 7,711
Cash Disbursing Officers 3 3
Total Cash and Cash Equivalent 1,965,494 2,759,176

The depository banks of the SBMA are Land Bank of the Philippines (LBP) and
Development Bank of the Philippines (DBP).

5. RECEIVABLES

This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
Receivables - Current
Trade
Locator 349,419 264,389
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 65,250 66,141
Net Realizable Value - Locator 284,169 198,248
Residential 12,531 17,158
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts _ 2,509 4,244
Net Realizable Value - Housing - 10,022 12,914
Equitable Card Net Inc. _ 889 491
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2016 2015

Total Trade - Current 295,080 211,653
Add: Non-Trade 6,803 7.454
Total Receivables - Current 301,883 219,107
Receivables - Non-Current ' ' '
Trade
Locator 3,848,829 3,604,505
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 3,617,593 3,375,651
Net Realizable Value - Locator 231,236 228,854
Residential 230,820 219,980
Less: Allowance for Doubtful Accounts 222955 213,312
Net Realizable Value - Housing 7,865 6,668
Total Trade — Non- Current 239,101 235,522
Non-Trade 57,098 25,115
Total Receivables — Non- Current : 296,199 260,637

Trade Receivables with age 360 days and below are classified as Current Trade

~ Receivables while those with age over one year are reported under Non-Current Trade

Receivables.

Non Trade Receivables- Current includes Due from BIR, DBM for procurement, Due
from GOCC-GSIS/SSS/PAG-IBIG/PHIC, Advances Officers and Employees and
Receivables Treasurer while Non Trade Non-Current Receivables includes Interest
Recetvables from Time Deposits, Bonds, Receivables from NGO/PO’s and Receivables
from Officers, Employees and former Board of Directors.

Trade Receivable- Non- Current includes the Receivable from the former SBMA
Treasurer for the cash ($322,296.18 and $25,315.67) which were stolen in a robbery that
occurred in the Treasury Department in November 2005,

The penalty on past due accounts are being recorded as income upon collection.

Following the revision in determining the Allowance for Doubtful Accounts as per
revised policy under SBMA Board Resolution No. 14-04-5063 issued on May 22, 2014,
the reporting of Accounts Receivable was changed from net of Allowance for Doubtful
Accounts and Accounts Receivable from Unearned Revenue to net of Allowance for

Doubtful Accounts only,

6. INVENTORIES

This account counsists of the following:

2016 2015
Supplies and Materials 34,033 34,086
Accountable Forms 1,125 793
Medical and Laboratory Supplies 3,861 2,236
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2016 2015

Gasoline, Oil and Lubricants 21,457 21,487
Spare Parts 45,854 45,984
Construction Materials 459 212
Other Inventory Items 2,360 2,360
Foreclosed/ Gamished Properties 686 686
Total Inventories | 109,835 107,844

The Inventory which includes Un-reconciled Inventory account amounting to P67.8
million and Inventories for Reconciliation of P24.8 million were reclassified per
Commission on Audit recommendation with COA-SAOM 2012-004 (2011) under JGL
12-02-0327 and JGL 12-02-331 respectively.  Efforts are being made by various
departments to determine the reasonable amount of un-reconciled inventory for probable
write-off of non- existing inventory items which are booked under the said accounts.
Approval for write off shall be requested from the Commission on Audit upon
completion of the actual inventory of existing items to document the unaccounted
inventories.

7. MISCELLANEOUS ASSETS

- This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
Prepayments 5,054 2,926
Bill/ Guarantee Deposit to Subic Enerzone 3,514 5,235
Advances to Contractors 3,069 4435
Total Miscellaneous Assets 11,637 12,596

Prepayments include prepaid expenses for insurance, licenses, subscriptions and
registrations that are subject to regular monthly amortization as expense when incurred.

Guarantee deposits made to Subic Enerzone to guaranty installation of transformers,
power lines and power accounts of SBMA.

The Advances to Contractors are for project mobilization or as required in the contract.
These amounts are for recoupment against their claims to SBMA for the succeeding
periods.

8. INVESTMENTS

This account consists of equity Investment of SBMA on the following Subic Bay
Freeport registered companies:

2016 2015
Freeport Service Corporation ' 3,999 5,999
Subic Technopark 43,003 28,836
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2016 2015

Subic Bay Development and Mgt. Corp. 13,008 13,008
Joint Venture - Subic Water 182,174 202,174
BCDA and CDC - SCADC 2,083 2,083
Subic Bay Yacht Club (net) 6,600 6,600
Subtotal 252,867 258,700
Investment in LBP

Certificate of Peso Time Dep. 10,000 10,000
LBP SBMA Dollar TD Acct. ' 2,269,030 573,426
Total Investments : 2,531,897 842,126

The winding up of the Freeport Service Corporation (FSC) corporate affairs started in
August 2010 and its entire operation was dormant since September 26, 2010. All FSC
employees were retrenched and paid cotresponding separation pays. At present, all FSC
managed properties and facilities were turned over and operated to/by SBMA. SBMA
likewise took over FSC’s current sub lessees and directly collects the sublease rentals as
payment of FSC’s unpaid obligations to SBMA until Sept, 30, 2012. Beginning Oct. 1,
2012, all of FSC’s sub lessees were transferred to SBMA as direct lessees. FSC’s

movable properties were also turned over to SBMA for safekeeping and proper
disposition.

9. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (PPE, ')

This account consists of the following:

Land and  Building and Furniture

Land Building  and Other Total PPE
Improvements Structures Equipment

Cost 16,328,673 8,125,737 583,199 25,037,609
Construction In-progress 61 0 0 61
Accumulated Depreciation (128,307) (256,473) (69,118) (453,898)
Carrying Amount-

December 31, 2015 16,200,427 7,869,264 514,081 24,583,772
Construction in Progress 0 0 0 0
Additions/ Transfer 7,707 1,786 18,008 27,501
Depreciation for the Year (131,576) (256,917) (64,389) (452,882)
Depreciation Prior Year 0 - 0 0 0
Carrying Amount-

December 31, 2016 16,076,558 7,614,133 467,700 24,158,391

An ongoing reconciliation is currently being made by the Accounting Department, the
Land and Asset Management Department {LAMD) and the Procurement and Property
Management Department (PPMD) to reconcile the records of the departments on the
actual inventory of all existing properties particularly land, buildings, building
improvements, furniture, fixtures and other equipment. This is an initial action to
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reinstate the assets” value to its realizable amount/ fair value and assure the reliability of

the amounts presented in the statement of financial position.
10. OTHER ASSETS

This account consists of the following;

2016 2015
Restricted Cash (SLBP)- SBMA Debt Service Acct 163,369 96,894
LBP- - Trust Fund Various 407,713 247,855
DBP - Trust Fund Various 54,287 87,064
Arts, Archeological Specimen and Other Exhibits 3,517 3,517
Work Animals 8,001 9,339
Peso Time Deposit - LBP 0.00 0.00
Peso Cash on Hand 857 857
Due from Officers & Employees 5,611 4,770
Total Other Assets 643,445 450,296

For the Peso Cash on Hand of P856,754.66, Please note that part of the difference
between cash on hand of $856,754.66 has been accounted as rate of exchange difference

at the time collection was received and when deposited.
11. PAYABLES AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
Payables - Current
Capital Outlay 8,385 34,930
Unliquidated Obligation 22,915 23,441
Unclaimed Checks 0 0
Miscellaneous 617 617
Total Payables - Current 31,917 58,988
Accrued Expenses - Current
Maintenance and Operating Expenses 71,219 102,094
Due to Officers and Employees 12,957 13,161
Guaranty 18,416 20,829
Total Accrued Expenses - Current _ 102,592 136,084
Total Payables and Accrued Expenses - Current 134,509 195,072
Payables — Non-Current '
Accounts Payable - Miscellaneous 12,447 12,435
AP-Due to Officers-Unpaid Compensated Absences 210,171 157,983
Total Payables - Non-Current 222,618 170,418
Total Payables and Accrued Expenses 357,127 365,490
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The payables account includes various obligations to suppliers, contractors and
personnel. The obligations incurred are payables for such items of MOOE, Capital

Expenditures, (Capex) and Personnel Services (PS). The latter represents accumulated
earned leave credits of SBMA employees. '

The SBMA had a liability of P10,173,295.12 to the National Labor Relation Commission
(NLRC) arising from the Writ of Execution issued by Hon. Mariano L. Bactin, Executive
Labor Arbitration Board III, City of San Fernando, Pampanga for the NLRC Case No.
RABIII-08-20448-13 filed by FSC employees against the FSC, a 100% owned subsidiary
of SBMA. The Accounting Department is waiting for the advise/instruction from the

Legal Department on the status of the case before recognizing the said amount in the
SBMA’s Books of Accounts.

Unpaid Guarantee Fees for the current year are also reported in this section of the
statement of financial position.

12. LOANS PAYABLES

This account represents drawdowns from the following bilateral lending institutions net
of repayments:

Creditor Interest Approved Total Total In YEN TInUSD 2016 2015
' Loan Drawdown Repayment {In Peso) (In Peso)
In
USD/YEN

World
- BankIl 0.66% p-a. S60M 25528 24313 1,215 60,405 166,423
2.50%p.a.
{Category A
- Consulting)
and 2.10%
pa
{Category B
IBIC/ - Civil
OECF 1 Works) IPY 1.03B 797,857 389,239 408,618 3,454 173,704 175,434
0.95% p.a.
{Category A
- Consulting)
and 0.75%
pa
(Category B
IBIC/ - Civil :
OECFII  Works) JPY 16.45B 15,683,166 3,352,446 12,330,720 105,426 5,241,789 5,035,044

floating rate

(prevailing 3

mo. London
Loan Interbank
Payable- Offered Rate
LBP § (LIBOR)

Loan plus a spread
(Long- of 232 basis
© Term) points (bps} $27M 27,000 5,400 21,600 1,073,952 1,270,620
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Creditor Interest  Approved Total Total In YEN IaUSD 2016 2015
Loan Drawdown Repayment (In Peso) (In Peso)
In
USD/YEN

Sub Total

- Foreign

Loans . 6,549,850 6,647,521
Domestic

Loan 0
Total

0

1.oans

Payahle _ 6,549,850 6,647,521
Less

Current

Portion 563,844 325,907
Long-

term

Portion 5,986,006 6,321,614

Foreign loans are recorded at restated value. Revaluation rate as of December 31, 2016
and December 31, 2015 are $1: P49.72, JPY1: P0.4251 and $1: 47.06, JPY1: P0.3920,
respectively.

Current portion of loans payable as follows:

Creditor I’;yn‘lent Foreign Currency (Bizs‘e(:il?)?lu(l}‘:l:::;t
eriod Amount
Exchange Rate)
Foreign Loans ‘
World Bank II Jan-15-2017  USD 1,214,903.74 60,405
JBIC/OECFI Sep-20-2017  JPY 19,458,000.00 8,271
Mar-20-2017  JPY 19,458,000.00 8,271
JBIC /OECF 11 Feb-20-2017 JPY 256,890,000.00 109,205
Aug-20-2017  JPY 256,890,000.00 109,204
Land Bank Dec-26,2017 USD 5,400,000.00 268,488
Loans Payable- Current Portion 563,844
13. DEFERRED CREDITS TO INCOME
This account consists of the following:
2016 2015
Current
Deferred Credits to Income Non-Cash 28,744 67
Deferred Credits to Income ~Cash _ 47,706 49334
Total Deferred Credits to Income- Current _ 76,450 49,401
Non- Current
Deferred Credits to Income Non-Cash ' 372,145 332,236
Deferred Credits to Income -Cash 2,698,174 2,649,313
Total Deferred Credits to Income- Non-Current 3,070,319 2,981,549
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2016 2015
Total Deferred Credits to {n_come 3,146,769 3,030,950

Deferred  credits  include  rentals received in  advance from  varous
investors/locators/residents related to long-term lease.

14. SECURITY DEPOSITS AND ADVANCE RENTAL

This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
Current
Security Deposit and Advance Rental on Short - Term Lease
Security Deposit - Locator 40,233 38,533
N Security Deposit - Housing & Others 437 437
o Advance Rental 229,384 183,411
: . Total Security Deposits and Advance Rental- Current 270,054 222,381
Non- Current
- Security Deposit on Long - Term Lease 652,234 520,651
Total Security Deposits and Advance Rental- Non- 652,234 222,381
Current
- Total Security Deposits and Advance Rentals 922,288 743,032
. The Security Deposits represent cash payments made by tenants as a guarantee for unpaid

utility bills at the end of the lease term. While advance rentals represent payments from
Locators and Residents to be applied against the last month/s of the customer’s
occupancy of the leased facility. In no case shall this amount, during the term of the
lease agreement, be applied to the customer’s unpaid obligation unless the customer has
. given its intention to vacate the leased property. In the event that there is no outstanding
account at the end of the lease term, the advance rental shall be refunded accordingly.

I5. TRUST LIABILITIES

This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
National government
- BIR 40,613 37,824
L BOC 8,713 6,330
. Government Owned and Controlled Corporations
GSIS 16,826 7,055
= PAG-IBIG 2,972 3,457
| PHILHEALTH 1,100 773
SSS 61 58
_ LGUs (2% Share on 5% Preferential Tax) : 205,463 160,673
- Retention Fees 19,671 14,815
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2016 2015
Various Liabilities 250,570 153,325

Total Trust Liabilities | _ 545,989 384,310

Due to Other Funds account includes amounts paid by Financial Building Corporation
(FBC) and EMS Corporation’s Subleasees’ that have court cases amounting to
P37,614,816.97 and $914,429.19 respectively.

16. PAID IN CAPITAL

This account consists of the following:

. 2016 2015
Paid-in Capital
Cost of Fixed Assets 19,100,000 19,100,000
Cash Contribution from the National Government 842 815 842,815
Total Pajd-in Capital 19,942 815 19,942,815

17. APPRAISAL SURPLUS

The Appraisal Surplus represents the additional net book value of Buildings and
Structures turned over by the U.S. Naval Base in 1993 booked based on the result of the
physical inventory completed by the Fixed Asset Inventory Team in December 2003.
The piecemeal realization of Appraisal Surplus was initially recorded in July 2005. This
represents amortization of appraisal surplus.

The Land and Asset Management Department (LAMD) is currently in the process of
verifying the inventory list of all SBMA properties particularly Land and Building.
Appraisal and valuation of the properties to its Fair Market Value is being worked out by
the LAMD which may affect the Appraisal Surplus account upon recording of the
properties to its realizable and fair amounts.

- I18. INVESTED CAPITAL — HELD IN TRUST

The Invested Capital — Held in Trust includes eight motor vehicle from Hanjin and
Summa Kumagai and furniture and office equipments from CPPAP.

19. DONATED CAPITAL

The Donated Capital are composed of the Instrument Landing System (ILS) partly
financed by the Federal Express Corp. amounting to $34,367,662.00 and the 10 mural
paintings of Artist Rene Robles amounting to £3,250,000.00.
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20. GAIN /(LOSS) ON REVALUATION

This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
Gain on Revaluation
Realized Gain ,
Gain on Foreign Exchange 183,112 104,744
Gain on Foreign Exchange - Cash 25,143 70,835
Subtotal- Realized Gain 208,255 175,579
Lo Unrealized Gain
Gain on Revaluation of:
Dollar Accounts Receivable 128,149 106,904
9 Dollar Security Deposits 0 54
Dollar Advances 2 30
Subtotal- Unrealized Gain 128,151 106,988
Unrealized Loss
Loss on Revaluation of :
Foreign Loans (485,559) (356,998)
Dollar Deferred Credits (7,310) (179}
: Dollar Security Deposits (8,929) 0
L Subtotal- Unrealized Loss (501,798) (357,177)
TOTAL GAIN/(LOSS) ON REVALUATION- NET (165,392) (74,610)

Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange represents realized gain or loss from transactions such
as collection of foreign denominated receivables, payments of foreign denominated loans
: and other payables, application of advance rentals against outstanding receivables and
. other transactions with similar cases.

Gain (Loss) on Revaluation represents unrealized gain or loss from translation of foreign
denominated accounts to its peso equivalent using the month end rate for the period.

 21. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
Interest Income | 101,525 65,108
Regulatory Fees 274,628 260,125
Other Gov't Business Income 224,847 201,061
Miscellaneous 50,529 5,010
Total Other Operating Income ' 651,529 531,304
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22. OTHER EXPENSES

This account consists of the following:

2016 2015
Interest on Loans 93,757 81,821
Guarantee Fees and Other Charges 57,139 54,937
Others 365,920 354,626
Total Other Expenses 516,816 491,384

Guarantee Fees are paid to the Bureau of Treasury to guaranty payment of outstanding
foreign loans. Full payment was made on February 6, 2014 on International Cooperative
and Development Fund (ICDF) loans. Contractual Services-SBMA is included under
Other Maintenance and Operating Expenses starting of August 31, 2013 and Other
Professional Services-Fuel, Meals, Accommodation & Other Reimbursement, Travel and

. Communication are included starting April 30, 2014. Contractual Services-SBMA and

Total Other Professional Services as of September 30, 2014 are P122,751,091.97 and
P4,004,750.49, respectively.

23. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Authority has entered into a service and management contracts with Freeport Service
Corporation (FSC), its wholly-owned subsidiary, since FSC’s start of operations in 1996.
Contracts include FSC’s provision of manpower services to SBMA on a reimbursable
basis plus 10% overhead mark up. However, the overhead markup has been increased
from 10% to 13% effective December 17, 2004. Facilities management contract requires
FSC’s management of tourism-related facilities of SBMA. Under this arrangement, the
term of which lasted until 2009, SBMA paid FSC a management fee of P6 million per
month while SBMA received 5% of FSC’s gross income on these facilities.

However, in SBMA’s effort to wind up the operation of FSC, the management fee of P6
million per month were no longer extended beginning January 2010. With FSC’s
dormancy of operation beginning September 26, 2010, the provision for gross revenue
sharing had also been stopped since FSC’s facilities were taken over by SBMA, based on
the Omnibus Agreement between SBMA and FSC, for management by the Tourism

- Department and the LAMD.,

24. TAXATION

As a territorial tax privilege in accordance with Section 43 of RA No. 7227, enterprises
located within the Subic Bay Freeport Zone (SBFZ) shall be exempt from all national and
local taxes. In lieu of paying taxes, the SBF enterprises, including SBMA, shall pay a
final tax of 5% of their gross income earned from sources within the SBFZ. As defined
in the same section of RA No. 7227, “gross income earned” shall mean gross sales or
gross revenues derived from any business activity, net of returns, discounts and
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allowances, less cost of sales, but before deduction for administrative expenses and
incidental losses during a given taxable period.

25. ASIAN ECONOMIC EVENTS

The Authority had obtained several loans with bilateral lending institutions to finance the
infrastructure development of Subic Bay Freeport Zone. Most of these loans were

negotiated and became effective before the Asian economic crisis hit the country in late
1997.

The peso depreciation vis-a-vis the US dollar, Japanese yen and Euro have had a great
impact on SBMA’s debt service requirements. Loans’ peso value depreciates when

pegged against their original peso value using the negotiated foreign exchange rate at
loan dates. :

To address the issue on the uncontrolled depreciation and appreciation of peso against
foreign currencies from time to time, new lease contracts being entered by SBMA are

~ now peso denominated.

26. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE INTEGRATED FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT
SYSTEM (IFMS)

On June 1, 2004, the Authority had implemented the IFMS concurrent with the manual
accounting. Three modules were developed to facilitate the recording of all transaction
and information presented in duly certified and approved Journal Entry Vouchers. The
function of each module is briefly discussed as follows:

.. GENERAL LEDGER MODULE (GL). Facility to record all adjustments,
corrections & reversing entries that cannot be recorded in the other modules
replacing the manual recording/ reporting in the General Journal.

ii. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE MODULE (AR). Facility to record all billing and
collection transactions replacing the manual recording/ reporting in the Journal of
Bills Rendered and the Journal of Collections and Deposits.  The Journal of
Accounts Receivable generated in this module replaces the aforesaid manual books.

Currently, Statement of Account (SOA) and Billing Statements issued to the
Locators and residents are IFMS generated reports. The manual preparation of these
reports has been stopped since the parallel run on the manual system and the I[FMS
AR module produced the same outputs.

iti. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE MODULE (AP).  Facility to record all obligation and
disbursement transactions replacing the manual recording/ reporting on Voucher
Payable Register and Journal of Checks Issued. The Journal of Accounts Payable
generated in this module replaces the aforesaid manual books.
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" The Financial Statements are prepared manually based on the IFMS generated reports
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PART 1I - AUDIT OBSERVATIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS

1. FINANCIAL AND COMPLIANCE AUDIT
Unaccounted Property Plant and Equipment — P24.1 billion

L The total reported carrying amount of the Agency’s Property Plant and
Equipment (PPE) amounting to P24,1 42,405,240.88 representing 80.42% of the entity’s
total assets remained not fully and properly accounted for due to (a) lack of reliable
subsidiary records and non-submission of a complete Report on the Physical Count of
Property Plant and Equipment (RPCPPE) owing to the (i) limited functionality of the
entity’s Integrated Financial Management System (IFMS), and the Procurement and
Property Management Department’s (PPMD) stand — alone inventory system; and (ii)
lack of adequate manpower; (b) prior year’s deficiencies and discrepancies which
remained unacted upon such as the undocumented demolished buildings amounting to
P1,095,575,641.60 which are still recognized in the books, and the doubtful existence
and valuation of the land and land improvements and the buildings and structures
accounts costing P23,472,295,260.25 which have been part of the recurring findings as
stated in the previous audit reports thus, indicative of the entity’s continuous failure to
comply with the existing standards, rules and regulations aiready cited in the previous
recommendations; and (c) the non-application of the capitalization threshold of
#£15,000.00 as required under COA Circular 2016-006 and Section 4, Chapter 10 the
Government Accounting Manual which resulted in the overstatement of the PPE by
P8,354,431.24.

11 PAS 16 defines property, plant and equipment as tangible items that are held for
use in the production or supply of goods or services, for rental to others, or for
administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more than one period. As of
December 31, 2016, the balances of the following major account classification of property
and equipment appeared in the Statement of Financial Position:

Account 2016 2015 Difference

Land and Land

Improvements P18,907,646,007.89 P18,899,938,852.43 | P 7,707,155.46
Accumulated

Depreciation 2 844 671.459.57 2.713.095.116.71 131,576,342.86
Carrying amount $16,062,974,548.32 P16,186,843,735.72 | (P123,869,187.40)
Building and Building

Structures $19,556,267,374.03 $19,554,481,546.75 | P 1,785,827 28
Accumulated

Depreciation 11,944.537.113.61 11,687.620,375.56 256.916,738.03
Carrying Amount P 7,611,730,260.42 £ 7,866,861,171.19 (P55,130,910.77)
Furniture and Other

Equipment P 2,487,747,556.88 P 2,469,739,02593 | P 18,008,530.95
Accumulated

Depreciation 2.020.047,124.74 1,955,657.665.62 64,389.459.12
Carrying amount P 467,700,432.14 P 514,081,360.31 | (P46,380,928.17)
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Account 2016 2015 Difference
Total carrying

amount-PPE :

(excluding CIP) P24,142,405,240.88 $24,567,786,267.22 | (P425,381,026.34)
Total Assets P30,018,781,419.12 P29,235,554,082.68 | P 783,227,336.44
Percentage of PPE '

to total assets 80.42% 84.03%

1.2 As shown above, out of the total reported assets of the SBMA amounting to
P30,018,781,419.12 in 2016, 80.42% or P24,142,405,240.88 was comprised of the main
PPE accounts. However, our examination of the account balances disclosed deficiencies
which render the said amount doubtful and unreliable.

a. Lack of Subsidiary Records to support the details of the controlling accounts- P9.5
billion ‘

1.3 As part of our audit procedures, a verification of the Integrated Financial
Management System (IFMS) subsidiary ledgers (SL) was made and it was disclosed that
there were no ledger balances for the following accounts:

Account Balance per GL

Land Improvements (LI}-Water Supply System-Pastolan, Subic P11,305.56

2Funded
Fully Depreciated- Land Improvements 734,013,196.98
B&S-Custom Entry Post 18,433,655.83
B&S-Water Supply Head Controls, Reservoirs, Pumping Stations 1,336,276.40

and Conduit '
B&S-Electrification _ 81,078,688.30
B&S-Port Development 7.777,505,480.19
Fully Depreciated-Buildings and Structures 351,005,248.43
Vessels & Boats-Port Development 514,618,823 .46
Technical and Scientific Equipment 1,114,502.00
Water Supply Equipment 1,103,644.55
Security Equipment 15,016,523.00
Total $9,495,237,344.70

1.4 The absence of such detailed subsidiary records preclude the determination of the
correctness of the balances of the controlling accounts. This runs counter to Section 12 of
the Manual on the New Government Accounting System (MNGAS) which prescribes the
subsidiary ledger as a book of final entry containing the details or breakdown of the balance
of the controlling account in the general ledger (GL). It is further provided that postings to
the SL shall generally come from the source documents and that the totals of the SL
balances shall be reconciled with their respective control accounts regularly or at the end
of each month.

1.5  Our audit covering the Calendar Year 2016 once again showed that the concerned
departments failed to comply with these requirements.
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1.6 According to Management, the transactions prior to the implementation of the
IFMS in 2003 have not been captured by the system, thus the subsidiary ledger balances
for the said accounts are not included in the ITFMS and that the Accounting Department had
to manually maintain the subsidiary ledgers for the said accounts.

No Complete Report Evidencing the Conduct of Actual Physical Stock-Taking

1.7 In addition, we requested the submission of the Report on the Physical Count of
Property Plant and Equipment (RPCPPE) as of December 31, 2016. However, no such
complete report was submitted to show the results of actual inventory- taking which is
required to be done annually by the agency, and to be witnessed by a representative from
the audit team. Section 42 of the Government Accounting Manual prescribes the RPCPPE
to be used in reporting the physical count and condition of PPE by type as at a given date,
including those which are unrecorded and those which could not be accounted for. It shows
the balance of PPE based on property cards and based on count and the resulting overage
or shortage, if any. The report shall be rendered by the Inventory Committee, on its yearly
physical count of properties owned by the entity, to be submitted to the Office of the
Auditor not later than January 31 of each year.

1.8 Inlike manner, the lack of a complete and correct RPCPPE renders the balances of
the PPE accounts doubtful since there were no bases to support the amounts appearing in
the Statement of Financial Position. Said observation has already been noted in the
previous audit reports therefore the continuous failure to conduct the actual inventory is
indicative of Management’s lack of resolve to comply with previously cited rules and
regulations on the matter.

1.9  In the Audit Observation Memorandum (AOM) issued to Management, we
recommended that the concerned departments be required to explain the causes of the
recurring deficiencies. According to Management, the non-submission of a complete
RPCPPE was due to the following reasons: the lack of manpower to perform the inventory
of all SBMA property in the Freeport, and the problems /limitations brought about by the
computerized inventory system being used by the Procurement and Property Management
Department (PPMD). As stated in the Management’s reply, said system could not generate
reliably the required reports. It was also mentioned that a request to purchase a new system
— the Fixed Asset Management System (FAMS) was already initiated by the PPMD,
however, this was not pursued due to SBMA’s plan to procure another system, the
Enterprise Resource Planning System (ERPS), which is aimed at integrating the other
functions/ requirements of various SBMA departments.

b. Non-Existent Buildings and Structures still recognized in the books —P1.1 billion
and doubtful existence and valuation of immovable PPE- £23.5 billion

1.10  Aside from the deficiencies presented above, the previous year’s findings on the
structures which are no longer existing but still carried in the books remained unacted upon
thus, the Building and Structures account remained to be overstated by at least
P1,095,575,641.60. As mentioned in the previous year’s audit report, a total of 405
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buildings, structures and utilities were still included in the total assets of the SBMA while

these have already been demolished in various years and therefore no longer existent as of
year-end.

LI1  Relative to this, prior year’s observation on the questionable validity and reliability
of the reported valuation and existence of the land and land improvements as well as the
buildings and structures accounts in the total amount of 23,472,295,260.25 still holds true
as of the end of the Calendar Year 2016 considering that no status report showing any
corrections or adjustments related thereto had been presented to the audit team. The
absence of such corrections/adjustments means that the same amount remains to be part of

the year-end balance as reported by Management, the reliability and actual composition of
which cannot still be substantiated as of year-end.

1.12  Management commented that the Land and Asset Development Department
(LADD) together with the Accounting Department have already started taking the
corrective actions with regard to the non-existent buildings and structures by identifying
the said structures and submitting the available documents and reconciling their records.
Likewise, actions to address the discrepancies noted in the SBMA’s total land area had
already been made. '

c. Overstatement of PPE due to non-compliance with the prescribed capitalization
threshold -P8.4 million

1.13  PAS 16 presents the following criteria for recognition of PPE:

& itis probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow
to the entity; and

¢ the cost of the item can be measured reliably

1.14 In addition, with the issuance of the Revised Chart of Accounts for Government
Corporations under COA Circular No. 2016-006 and as provided in Section 4, Chapter 10
of the Government Accounting Manual, the capitalization threshold of 215,000.00 has
been established, representing the minimum cost of an individual asset recognized as a PPE
on the Statement of Financial Position. In the same vein, Section 10, Chapter 8 of the
Manual provides that tangible items costing P15,000.00 shall be accounted as semi-
expendable property and shall be recognized as expenses upon issuance to the end-user.
However, an Inventory Custodian Slip (ICS) shall be issued to the end-user to establish
accountability over them. :

1.15  Our audit showed that items costing below the prescribed threshold were still
carried in the books of SBMA thereby misstating the total PPE as well as the Government
Equity by 8,354,431.24. A summary of these items is presented hereunder:

ACCOUNT | ACQUISITION | ACCUMULATED | CARRYING
ACCOUNT TITLE CODE COST DEPRECIATION | AMOUNT
Office Equipment 207-001 $743,703.06 | P658,504.12 P85,198.94
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ACCOUNT | ACQUISITION | ACCUMULATED CARRYING
ACCOUNT TITLE CODE COST DEPRECIATION | AMOUNT

It Equipment And ' ]
Software 207-002 333,222.00 229,633.88 103,588.12
Machineries 207-003 9,750.00 8,775.00 975.00
Communication
Equipment 207-004 2.355,883.08 418,003.87 | 1,937,.879.21
Firefighting '
Equipment And
Accessories 207-005 102,014.00 91,116.15 10,897.85
Medical, Dental And
Laboratory Equipment 208-001_ 334,688.87 301,219.98 33,468.89
Technical And
Scientific Equipment | 218-001 10,200.00 9,180.00 1,020.00
Hand tools 225-001 171,725.48 | 138,386.25 33,339.23
Water Supply
Equipment 225-002 23,590.00 21,231.00 2,359.00
Security Equipment 225-004 160,500.00 | 144,450.05 16,049.95
Equipment-Task Force
Subic 225-005 72,960.31 65,682.98 7,277.32
Other Equipment 225-015 7,381,088.18 4,318,525.92 | 3,062,562.27
Furniture And Fixture | 226-001 12,416,239.21 9,363,413.74 | 3,052,825.47
Library Books 227-001 49,650.00 42,660.00 6,990.00
TOTAL $24,165,214.19 P15,810,782.95 | P8,354,431.24

1.16 Management assured us that the necessary adjustments will be made in conformity
with the new capitalization threshold.

1.17  In order to address the aforecited issues and deficiencies,

1.18  We recommended and Management agreed to (a) consider the upgrading of
the existing IFMS as well as the system being used by the PPMD or the acquisition
of new functional systems whichever is more advantageous to the entity, pending the
materialization of the more integrated Enterprise Resource Planning System
(ERPS); (b) prioritize the conduct of a complete inventory of all property, plant and
equipment items owned by SBMA and the reconciliation of the accounting, the land
and asset department, and the property department records by augmenting the
personnel assigned to the inventory team in order to establish the actual existence,
quantity and amount of the same by effecting the necessary adjustments in order to
present fairly the account balances in the financial statements; and (c) effect the
necessary adjustments pertaining to the capitalization threshold on PPE, and to
henceforth adopt the existing regulation on the same.
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Unreliable inventory account balances and non-existent inventories - Pl 09.83 million &
P86.72 million respectively

2. The total balance of the various inventory accounts as of December 31, 2016 in
the amount of P109,834,857.68 cannot be relied upon due to ineffective inventory
management system and lack of adequate manpower which resulted to (a) lack of
adequate reports and documents to support said balance such as the complete Report
on the Physical Count of Inventory, Reports on Supplies and Materials Issued, Supply
Ledger Cards thus, resulting in unreconciled balances between the Accounting and the
Property Records; and (b) long outstanding, unaccounted balances, and non-existent
Fuel, Oil, and Lubricants, Spare Parts, Office Supplies, Maintenance Supplies, and
Inventory Items for Sale-Promo Items accounts registered at P20,957,080.24,
P36,670,950.49, P18,930,640.44, P7,804,145.05, and P2,352,643,98, respectively, or a
total of P86,715,460.20 representing 79% of the total balance, thus violating the
provisions of Section 43 of the Manual on the New Government Accounting System and
Section 17 of the Government Accounting Manual, and failing to fully meet the criteria
or qualitative characteristics of useful financial information as embodied in the
Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board, thereby resulting to misrepresentation of the accounts in the Statement
of Financial Position.

2.1 Our audit showed the following balances of the inventory accounts as appearing in
the accounting records:

Account Name December 31 December 31, | Imcrease/Decrease
2106 2015
Office supplies and Materials- P 80,339.38 | P 349,771.43 ($269,432.05)
direct issuance
Office Supplies and Materials 18,930,640.44 18,930,640.44 0
Office Supplies and Materials-

Stocking 2.467.925.10 2,258,876.63 209,048.47
Total Office Supplies $21,478,904.92 | P 21.539288.50 {P60,383.58)
Medical, Dental and Laboratory

Supplies P 38614261 | P 2,235972.42 P 1,625453.68
Fuel, oil, lubricants- stocking P 49951853 | P 530,188.50 (P30,669.97)
Fuel, oil, lubricants 20.957.080.24 20.957.080.24 0
Total Fuel , Oil and Lubricants P 21,456,598.77 | P 21.487,268.74 (P30,669.97)
Inventory Items For Sale -

Tourism P 2,359,755.52 | P 2,359,755.52 0
Maintenance Supply Inventory- P641,062.93 | P 1,325,480.89 (P684,417,96)

Direct Issuances
Maintenance Supply Tnventory 7,804,14505 | . 7,804,145.05 0
Maintenance Supply Inventory —

Stocking 4,109,335.65 3417,187.71 692,147.94
Total Maintenance Supply

Inventory P 12,554,543.63 | ® 12,546,813.65 $7,729.98
Foreclosed/Garnished Property P685,500.00 P685,500.00 0
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Account Name December 31 December 31, | Increase/Decrease

2106 2015
Spare Parts-Direct Issuances P217,835.00 P 315,425.00 (#97,590.00)
| Spare Parts 36,670,950.49 42,008,742.,35 (5,337,791.86)
Spare Parts-Stocking 8,965,399.12 |  3.660,578.78 5,304,820.34
Total Spare Parts Inventory P 45,854,184.61 | P 45,984,746.13 (P130,561.52)

- Construction Materials

Inventory P 45922569 P 212,251.32 P 246,974.37
. - | Accountable Forms P 1,124,71844 | P 792.572.46 P 332,145.9%
I Total P109,834,857.68 | P 107,844,168.74 P 1,990,688.94

2.2 Based on the Report on the Physical Count of Inventories (RPCT) submitted by the
Procurement and Property Management Department (PPMD) showing the result of the
Semi-Annual inventory-taking conducted by the committee as of December 23, 2016, a
total of £10,205,365.13 consisting of 1863 line items were found on hand, which is broken
down as follows:

Particulars Amount ]
- Batteries P 168,248.64
Chemical 1,180.00
Ecology-Spare parts 1,904,657.61
Government Owned Properties 4,018.00
. Hardware 1,201,094.06
' Office Supplies 2,671,164.38
- Qils and Lubricants 500,004.57
Spare parts 1,618,769.83
Tires 1,309,174.80
o Toiletries 827,053.24
s Total P 10,205,365.13

_: 2.3 Ascan be gleaned from the aforecited figures, there is a big disparity between the
- recorded amount of inventories in the books of accounts and the amount of inventories per
property records, as shown below:

L Per accounting records P 109,834,857.68
: Per property records (PPMD) 10,205.365.13
Difference P 99,629,492.55

24  Our audit further disclosed that out of the total reported inventories of
P109,834,857.68, as of December 31, 2016, the balances of the following accounts have
remained dormant and unaccounted for since the installation and adoption of the Integrated
Financial Management System (IFMS) in 2003, viz:

Account Name Amount
Fuel Oil, lubricants - P 20,957,080.24
Spare Parts 36,670,950.49
Office Supplies 18,930,640.44
‘Maintenance Supplies 7,804,145.05
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Account Name Amount
Items for Sale- Promo (Tourism) 2,352,643.98
Total P 86,715,460.20

2.5  Based on our interview with the accounting personnel handling these accounts, said
balances remained unaccounted/unreconciled due to lack of documents to support the said
amounts which have been transferred to the system during the time of tramsition or
migration from the manual accounting system to the [FMS. This means that out of the total
amount of P109,834,857.68 inventories appearing in the financial statements,

- P86,715,460.20 or at least 79% cannot be accounted for, thus, rendering the total current

asset figure unreliable.

2.6 As part of our audit procedures, an actual /ocular inspection was conducted by the
team together with the representatives from the accounting department and the PPMD to
determine the status of the aforementioned dormant inventory items. Based on our
validation, we found out that the fuel, oil, lubricants, office supplies, spare parts,
maintenance supplies, and the tourism promo items with aggregate reported amount of
P86,715,460.20 were no longer existing as of the end of the calendar year 2016, contrary
to what was presented in the Statement of Financial Position.

2.7  Aside from this deficiency, the unreconciled balances between the property records
and the accounting records further render the other account balances doubtful considering
that the reported results of the actual inventory-taking differs materially from the reported
figures in the Statement of Financial Position. A good internal control system requires that
perpetual inventory records should be checked periodically through physical count and that
the total value obtained from the count should be balanced with the controlling account.
Section 43 of the Manual on the New Government Accounting System and Section 17 of
the Government Accounting Manual explicitly present the required records, forms and
reports to be prepared and /or maintained with respect to the control and accounting for

" inventories, which were not fully complied with.

2.8  This observation had already been brought to Management’s attention in the
previous Annual Audit Reports. However, the same infractions exist as at the end of the
reporting period, thus, rendering the financial statements unreliable. Moreover, this is
contrary to what is provided for in the Conceptual Framework which states that if financial
information is to be useful, it must be relevant and faithfully represent what it purports to
represent.

2.9 In reply to our AOM, Management cited the following causes of the
abovementioned recurring deficiencies: 1) absence of an effective Inventory Management
Software- PPMD is currently using an in-house automated system, the Supply Inventory
Management System (SIMS) which is not linked with the accounting records; 2) lack of
documents to support the issuances made in the previous years; and 3) lack of adequate
manpower specifically in the accounting department to handle the maintenance of the
supplies ledger cards and the reconciliation of the records.

33




2.10 It is worthy to note that Management’s action plan to address the aforecited
deficiencies was also presented which include the following measures such as the
acquisition of a more effective ERPS, and the augmentation of the personnel handling the
maintenance of required records and reports.

2.11  Inview of the above, we recommended and Management agreed to (a) conduct
a2 thorough study and proper planning to determine the appropriate and effective
automated system that will address the needs of the agency; (b) angment the
workforce involved in the inventory management system; and (c) direct the
concerned heads of the accounting and the property departments to closely monitor
the progress/status of the reconciliation of the records, the preparation, maintenance

- and submission of the required documents such as the Stock Cards, the Supplies

Ledger Cards, the Reports of Supplies and Materials Issued, and the Reports on the
Physical Count of Inventories, among others,

Doubtful validity and accuracy of Construction- In Progress account balances - F15.99
million

3. Management’s assertion on the validity and accuracy of the reported balance of
Construction In Progress (CIP) accounts could not be relied upon due to (a) long
outstanding and unsupported ending balance in the IFMS amounting to P15,985,666.56
and unreconciled balances of the controlling accounts and the IFMS subsidiary ledgers
amounting to £2,582,787,572.14; (b) terminated project amounting to £8,279,000.00 still
recognized in the books; and (c) progress payments for the renovation of the Subic Bay
Exhibition and Convention Center (SBECC) and the Slope Protection Structure charged
to repairs and maintenance amounting to P13,870,398.94 and to Land Improvements
account amounting to P3,843,882.31, respectively contrary to Sections 12 and 41 of the
Manual on the New Government Accounting System (MNGAS), Philippine Accounting
Standard (PAS) 16, and Sections 24 and 25 of the Government Accounting Manual

- (GAM) thus, affecting the fair presentation of the accounts in the financial statements.

3.1  Our review of the Construction In Progress accounts with reported balance of
P15,985,666.56 as of December 31, 2016, showed the following breakdown, to wit:

Account Account Name Amount as of
Code December 31,
2016
242-001 CIP L & LI - Perimeter Fence iid 0.00
242-002 | CIP L & LI - Port Development i 1,809,605.10
242-003 CIP L & LI - Airports, Landing Fields & Terminals ' 0.00
242-004 | CIPL & LI - Strect Lightings 0.00
242-005 CIP L. & LI - Subic II Funded Projects 0.00
242-006 Plaza, Parks & Monuments (L&LI) 1,154,931.30
242-007 Forest Adventure Park 1,153,286,10
242-008 Electrification 661,001.18
242-015 CIP L & L] - Others 8,804,234.70
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Account Account Name Amount as of
Code December 31,
2016
244-001 CIP — Buildings 1,351,003.18
244-005 CIP - B & S - Port Development 0.00
244-015 CIP - Others, Buildings and Structures 1,051,605.00
Total P15,985.666.56

3.2 Our evaluation further revealed the following observations:

a. Long outstanding, unsupported CIP balances of P15,985,666.56 and unreconciled

balances of controlling accounts and IFMS subsidiary ledgers in the amount of
P2,582,787,572.14

3.3 In May 2008, the SBMA adopted the Revised Government Chart of Accounts as
prescribed under COA Circular 2008-001 dated January 29, 2008. The amount of
P46,8006,466.73 was the opening balance of CIP as a result of the conversion of the
accounts that was made through Journal of General Ledger (JGL) No. 08-05-000497.

34  Review of the General Ledgers (GL) of CIP accounts present below the
corresponding beginning balances, increases and decreases in amount, as well as the ending

balances for the years 2015 and 2016:

CIPL&LI-/CIPL & LI-| Forest | Electrification |CIPL & LI- cip - CIP - Total
Port Plaza, Parks | Adventure Others Buildings Others,
Development and Park Buildings
Monuments and
Structures
Opening
Balance on | 1,809,605.10 2,160,500.40(3,500,465.15 14,749,504.26 | 3,519,638.20| 16,954,356.284,112,397.34| 46,806,466.73
5/31/2008
Total
Increase in
Amount 0 375,431.20 O  360,856.02 P38,706,358.05| 4,869,099.31 141,589.02|244 453,333.60
2008-2015
Total
Decrease in
Amount o 1,381,000.302,347,179.05| 14,449.359.10 [233,421,761.51{20,472,452.4113.202,381.36|275,274,133.73
2008-2015
Balance as
of
12/331/2015 | 1,809,605.10! 1,154,931.3041,153,286.10:  661,001.18 | 8,804,234.70] 1,351,003.1811,051,605.00{ 15,985,666.56
and 2016
3.5  During our audit, we checked the composition of the individual CIP accounts.

However, the validity of the opening balances with total amount of P46,806,466.73 as well
as the other amounts appearing in the GL cannot be counterchecked against the subsidiary
ledgers (SL} in the IFMS which were either lacking or showing amounts different from
that reflected in the controlling account as illustrated on the next page of the report:
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CIP Account Amount per GL Amount per SL Difference
(IFMS)

Port Development P1,809,605.10 PO P1,809,605.10
Airports/Landing (1,719,718.62) 1,719,718.62
fields/Terminals
Subic II Funded (3,486,059.27) 3,486,059.27
Projects
Plaza, Parks and
Monuments 1,154,931.30 361,184.30 793,747.00
Forest Adventure 1,153,286.10 _ 0 1,153,2860.10 |
Parks ' :
Electrification 661,001.18 0 661,001.18
Land/Land '
Improvements Others 8,804,234.70 7,940,751.94 863,482.76
Buildings 1,351,003.18 (11,992,838.08) 13,343,841.26
B & 8 Port
Development 0 2,607,538,249.93 (2,607,538,249.93)
Others-
Buildings/Structures 1,051,605.00 131,668.50 919,936.50
Total P15,985,666.56 P2,598,773,238.70 | P(2,582,787.,572.14)

3.6 Ascanbe gleaned from the above schedule, there was a big difference between the
balances of the general and the subsidiary ledgers in the amount of $2,582,787,572.14
which is contrary to Section 12 of the Manual on the New Government Accounting System
Volume II which states that Subsidiary Ledger (SL) is a book of final entry containing the
details or breakdown of the balance of the controlling account appearing in the GL.
Posting of the SL generally come from the source documents. Xxx the totals of the SL
balances shall be reconciled with their respective control account regularly or at the end
of each month.

3.7  Individual SL should be maintained for each CIP account for internal control
purposes and to present the account details. As presented above, account CIP - Land and
Land Improvement (LI) - Port Development amounting to 1,809,605.10 has been dormant
for almost eight years, from CY 2008-2016. This implies that the construction project has
been on-going for the last cight years. However, based on our audit no details of said project

* can be found in the subsidiary records.

3.8  Management attributed the unaccounted figures mainly to the beginning balances
pertaining to prior years’ transactions which remained undocumented and unuploaded in
the IFMS. During the exit conference we were assured that the Accounting and the
Management Information System Departments will study the possibility of uploading the
necessary data to arrive at the reconciled balances.

b. Terminated project amounting to P8,279,000.00 still recognized in the books

3.9  Verification of the GL disclosed the total amount of 8,279,000.00 still lodged in
the CIP ~Land and Land Improvements (LI)- Others account since 2008. In response to

‘our AOM, Management confirmed that the said amount pertains to the payments and
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accruals made for the Consulting Services for the Detailed Engineering and Construction
and Supervision for the proposed construction of the New Magsaysay Bridge in 2008.
However, it was also mentioned that said contract was terminated under Board Resolution
No. 16-01-5631 but remained recognized in the books as of year-end thus, overstating the
account by the same amount, and violating paragraph 2, Section 41 of the Manual on the
New Govermnment Accounting system (MNGAS) which requires that during the
construction period, property, plant and equipment shall be classified and recorded as
Construction in Progress (CIP) with the appropriate asset classification. As soon as these
are completed, the CIP account shall be transferred to the appropriate asset accounts.

c¢. Construction in Progress directly charged to expenses amounting to
P13,870,398.94 and progress billing amounting fto P3,843,882.31 directly
recorded under PPE-Land Improvement (LI)-Others

3.10  Our audit disclosed that for the year 2016, there were no charges made to the CIP
accounts. Review of Projects, Programs and Activities (PPA) and the related accounting
entries made disclosed that cost of the progress payments and final payments of the
construction projects implemented by SBMA amounting to P71,278,976.27 and
P3,843,882.31 were charged to various repairs and maintenance expense accounts and PPE
account under LI-Others account, respectively. The details of the amount are presented as
follows:

DATE | REFERENCE | PARTICULARS ] AMOUNT

Repairs &Maintenance - Roads, Highways & Bridges (802-002)

24-AUG-16 | JAP-16-08-000603 | Payment of Last and Final Billing

on Periodic Road Maintenance P422,036.38
Project 2014.

23-SEP-16 | JAP-16-09-000472 | Payment of 1st Progress Billing
for the Periodic Road 26,567,608.91

Maintenance Project 2015.
29-SEP-16 | JAP-16-09-000671 | Payment of Last and Final Billing

for the NSD Road Network-Phase 3,787.317.61
1 Project.
14-DEC-16 | JAP-16-12-000309 | Payment of 2nd Progress Billing
on Periodic Road Maintenance 23,544,740.36
Project for 2015,
Sub-total $54,321,703.26
Repairs & Maintenance-Roads (804-002) _
02-MAR-16 | JAP-16-03-000014 | Payment for 2nd Progress Billing 1,827,300.50
on Pavement Repairs at Subic Bay
International Airport.
09-AUG-16 | JAP-16-08-000238 | Payment for Final Billing on
Pavement Repairs at Subic Bay | 1,259,573.57
International Airport.
$3,086,874.07

Repairs &Maintenance - Other Gov't. Facilities (804-004)
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DATE REFERENCE PARTICULARS AMOUNT
04-FEB-16 | JAP-16-02-000033 | Payment of Second Progress
Billing for the Renovation of P 5,582,828.22
Subic Bay Exhibition and
Convention Center Phase-1.
08-MAR-16 | JAP-16-03-000201 | Payment of 3 Progress Billing of

Renovation of Subic Bay 5,678,453.50
Exhibition and Convention Center
_ "Phase-1.
18-GCT-16 | JAP-16-10-000353 | Payment of Last and Final Billing
on Renovation of Subic Bay 2,609,117.22
Exhibition and Convention Center
Phase-1.
Sub-total P13,870,398.94
Grand P71,278,976.27

Total

3.11 Based on the table presented above, out of the $71,278,976.27, the amount of
P57,408,577.33 pertains to the road repair maintenance projects which according to
Management were approved by the Department of Budget and Management under

- Maintenance and Other Operating Expenses. However, the amount of £13,870,398.94

pertaining to the progress billings for the renovation of the Subic Bay Exhibition and
Convention Center were erroneously treated as Repairs and Maintenance Expenses which
resulted in misstatements of the entity’s assets and expenses at year-end.

3.12 Moreover, payment for the 1% progress billing for the construction of Slope
Protection Structure at Beta Street, Binictican, SBFZ amounting to £3,843,882.31 was
directly charged to PPE under Land Improvement (LI) -- Others, with account code (202-

015), instead of debiting the CIP account as prescribed under the chart of accounts for
government corporations.

3.13  Under PAS 16, an entity needs to evaluate all its property, plant and equipment
(PPE) costs at the time they are incurred. These costs include those incurred initially to
acquire or construct an item of PPE and costs incurred subsequently to add to, replace part
of, or service it. Relative to this, paragraph 12 of the same standard mentioned that the
entity does not recognize in the carrying amount of an item of PPE the costs of day-to-day
servicing of the item. Rather, these costs described as repairs and maintenance are
recognized in profit or loss as incurred.

- 3.14 However, under Section 24 of the Government Accounting Manual (GAM), repairs

and maintenance may be categorized into major and minor repairs. Minor repairs shall be
charged directly to expense account Repairs and Maintenance while major repairs shall be
added to the carrying amount of the PPE. It is only in cases where cost cannot be easily
differentiated between a minor and major repair, shall it be treated as an expense.

3.15  Section 25 of the GAM further provides that an entity shall capitalize the cost
incurred for repair, betterment, enhancement, expansion or upgrade of existing PPE if the
amount is material and a) where the expenditure results in an effective increase in the
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Juture economic benefits or service Ppotential that is expected to be derived from using the
asset and the increase in the future economic benefits or service potential will be realized;
b) there has been an effective increase in the quality of the services provided by the asset
beyond that previously determined: or ¢) there has been an effective extension to the asset’s
useful life as a result of the expenditure.

3.16  In the case of the SBMA, no cost of projects undertaken relative to pertinent PPE
items were capitalized during the year as stated earlier.

3.17 It is worthy to mention however, that as stated in the management’s reply and as
discussed during the exit conference corrective actions have already been taken by
Management to address some items cited in our AOM particularly those needing
corrections or adjustments.

3.18  We recommended and Management agreed to (a) account for the beginning
balances of the CIP accounts by submitting subsidiary records/details thereof as
uploaded in the IFMS, for our verification and tracking of the movements of the
amounts recognized; and (b) identify the reconciling items and make the necessary
corrections/adjustments in order to arrive at reconciled ending balances of the
general and the subsidiary ledger accounts.

Uncollected receivables-P3.9 billion

4. Total receivables were understated by at least $21,944.46 or P1,091,103.41 due
to unrecorded receivable from Hualong International, Inc. Moreover, of the Total
Receivables of P4,268,222,966.43 for locators and residents as of September 30, 2016,
P1,547,852,059.59 or 36.26% (excluding the dormant accounts of Financial Building
Corp, Home Guaranty Corporation and Legenda International Resorts Limited
aggregating to P2,050,221,252.81) were doubtful since their existence and correctness
were not ascertained. Relative to this, a discrepancy in the confirmed balances
amounting to PI132,457,871.35 was noted. Likewise, instances of laxity in the
implementation of the provisions of the lease agreements and existing policies on
delinquent/defaulting lessees have been noted which further resulted in uncollected
accounts. Lastly the inefficiency of Management to collect receivables resulted in the
accumulation of Doubtful Accounts of P3,908,308,166.14 or 86.73% of the Total
Receivables, leaving only a net realizable value (NRV) of P598,082,488.46 or 13.27% as
of December 31, 2016.

4.1 We have audited the account Receivables, on a test basis, with reported net
realizable value of P598,082,488.46 as of December 3 1, 2016, arrived at as follows:

Current Non-Current Total Percentage
based on
Total
_ Receivables
Locators $349,419,024.93 | P3,848,828,975.65 | 4,198,248 000.58 93.16%
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Current Non-Current Total Percentage
based on
Total

Receivables

Residential 12,531,981.93 230,820,117.40 243,352,099,33 5.40%

Equitable 888,742.05 0.00 888,742.05 0.02%

Card Net Inc,

Trade 362,839,748.91 4,079,649,093.05 4,442,488 841 96 98.58%

Receivables '

Non-Trade 6,803,429.14 57,098,383.50 63,901,812.64 1.42%

Receivables

Total 369,643, 178.05 4,136,747,476.55 4,506,390,654.60 100.00%

Receivables

Less; (67,760,086.30) (3,840,548,079.84) (3,908,308,166.14) 86.73%

Allowance for

doubtful

accounts

Net P301,883,091.75 P296,199,396.71 P598,082,488.46 13.27%

Realizable

Value

4.2 Inthe course of audit, we noted the following deficiencies:

Unrecorded receivables -P1.1 million

43  SBMA

is mandated to develop the Subic Special Economic Zone into a self:

sustaining, industrial, commercial, financial and investment center to generate employment
opportunities in and around the zone, and to attract and promote productive foreign
investments. Its mission is to generate broad-based business and Jjob opportunities by
offering unique maritime, eco-tourism and high-tech industrial services to the world as a
showcase of Philippine economic progress and development. Relative to this, SBMA’s
main revenue sources include the following: land and building leases, housing leases,
seaport and airport operations, regulatory fees, tourism and others.

44  The bulk of the revenue of SBMA emanates from lease agreements with Jocators
which are governed by the terms and conditions stipulated in the contracts and are normally
captured in the financial records as recejvables,

4.5 As presented above, total receivables amounted to $4,506,390,654.60 as of
December 31, 2016. Our examination, however, revealed that receivables amounting to
$21,944.46 were not recorded in the books. These were outstanding unpaid charges and
penalties due from Hualong International, Inc. involving the three vessels billed by SBMA
Seaport Department on March 29, 2010. A query was made to the Accounting Department
if these receivables were booked but no particular account under the name of said debtor
was documented. Likewise, our validation in the Integrated Financial Management System
(IFMS) yielded no record of such account. However, based on available source documents
the details of the said charges are as follows:
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. Amount TOTAL
Name of Vessel Particalars (USD) (USD)
1 | F/B Xiang Shun
Da
| Berthing Fee ' 33.96
Harbor Cleaning Fee 1210.00
Pilotage ) 9.00
Additional Charges 3,022.32
Berthing Fee and Harbor Cleaning Fee 4,705.64 9,280.,92
2 | F/B Rue Chang
Xiing
Berthing Fee 507.84
Harbor Cleaning Fee 1,840.00
Harbor Fee o 3.67
Pilotage ' 12.00
{ Additional Charges 3,022.32
Berthing Fee and Harbor Cleaning Fee 4,705.64 10,691.47
3 1 F/B Shun FA '
Xing
Berthing Fee 17.68
Harbor Cleaning Fee 5.89
Harbor Fee 40.00
Pilotage 9.00 |
Penalty (SBMA Seaport 94006) 500.00
Penalty (SBMA Seaport 94007) 2000.00 2,572.57
TOTAL 21,944.96

4.6 The above unrecorded amount understated the total receivables by $21,944.96 or
P1,091,103.41 (based on the prevailing exchange rate of P49.72). Moreover, since the
account pertains to a CY 2010 transaction which remained uncollected, this further shows
Management’s lapses in the recording and monitoring of its accounts, thus resulting in high
rate of uncollected receivables.

4.7 Intheir reply to our AOM, Management cited that based on the review made by the
Accounting Department, they found out that the Seaport Department issued various billing
assessment for Seaport Fees and Penalties to Hualong International, Inc. way back in 2008
to 2009. However, since then, the Accounting department did not receive any endorsement
of the said unpaid receivables for billing and booking purposes.

48 It was also mentioned that the SBMA Board had authorized the seizure and
impoundment of the vessels of said company under Board Resolution no. 09-07-3168 dated
July 3, 2009 due to the non-payment of the said Seaport Fees and Penalties and to the
alleged involvement of the three vessels in the suspected transporting of illegal drugs which
were intercepted by SBMA on May 25, 2008. Subsequently, the SBMA Board approved
the forfeiture of the two vessels F/B Xiang Shun Da and F/B Rue Chang Xi under Board
Resolution No. 10-04-3594 dated April 8, 2010. These two vessels are currently under
SBMA’s custody. The forfeiture of the 2 vessels was considered as payment of the fees
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and penalties due from the Hualong International, Incorporated and thus, considered the
same as having been collected. However, there were no documents presented to the team
pertaining to the said arrangement or accounting treatment of said transaction.

49  Relative to this, we were informed that Management will direct the concerned
departments to take the proper action in order to determine the value of the vessels and that
the necessary entries will be made in order to adjust the accounts.

4.10  Based on the comments presented by Management, there were lapses in the past
system as shown by the unbilled/unbooked assessment for the seaport fines and penalties,
as well as 1n the unrecorded vessels due to lack of adequate coordination between the
concerned units. Likewise, this was evident in the forfeiture/impoundment of only two
vessels instead of the original three vessels.

Discrepancy in the confirmed receivable balances — P 132.5 million

4.11  The Audit Team confirmed a total of 74 accounts through letters sent to selected
samples consisting of 39 residents and 35 locators to substantiate at least 36.36% of the
total trade receivable balance of P4,268,222,966.43 as of September 30, 2016. The results
of the confirmation are summarized below:

% 1o total
Residents (Housin Locators Total Receivables
Results of (H g)
. . - trade
Confirmation No. of No. of No. of
) Amount : Amount ’ Y% Amount
Request Request Request

1. Reply
without 0 0.00 0 0.00 0 0.00 0.00 0.00%
Exception
2-Reply with 1 1,550,439.36 3 138,183,039.21 4 541 | 139,733478.57 3.27%
Exception
Sub-total 1 1,550,439.36 3 138,183,039.21 4 541 139,733,479.57 3.27%7
3'R,‘13mmed 21 48,933 472.88 13 492,148,095.78 | 34 4595 | 541,081,568.66 |  12.68%
miai .
d.No reply 17 95,272,993.39 19 771,764,018.97 36 58.65 | 867,037,012.36 20.31%
Sub-total 38 144,206,466.27 32 1,263,912,114.75 72 97.30 | 1,408,118,581.02 32.99%
Total Amount
Subject for 39 145,756,905.63 35 1,402,095,153.96 74 10000 | 1,547,852,059.59 36.26%
Confirmation

Total Receivables — Trade as of September 30, 2016 (Locators and Residents) 4,268,222 966.43 100.00%

4.12  As presented above, the total amount for confirmation was P1,547,852,059.59 or
36.26% of the total receivables as of September 30, 2016, which was the initial cut-off date
established for the purpose of the preparation of an interim audit report. Of the total samples
selected, only 5.41% replied. Based on the replies received, there was a total discrepancy
0fP132,457,871.35 which comprised of P1,550,439.36 under one residential account, and
P130,907,431.99 consisting of 3 locator accounts as shown hereunder.
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Amount per Amount per .
Locators | Book Conﬁrma?:ion Difference
1 | Philippine Amusement and P87,447,702.87 P0.00 | P87,447,702.87
Gaming Corp.
2 | The Manila Times College 39,546,677.21 4,850,000.00 34,696,677.21
of Subic Inc. [Formerly (100,000.00xP48.50)
George Dewey/Global City
Innovative College Subic]
3 | Phalippine Coastal Storage & 11,188,659.13 2,425,607.22 8,763,051.91
Pipeline Corp. (50,012.52 x P48.50)
Total $138,183,039.21 P7,275,607.22 | ¥130,907,431.99

4.13  Based on the information gathered from the management’s reply to our AOM, the
above discrepancies maybe attributed to the following issues involving the said accounts

which remained unresolved as summarized below:

LOCATOR

DIFFERENCE

REMARKS

. Philippine Amusement and
Gaming Corporation
(PAGCOR)

P87,447,702.87

This pertains to the storage fee of
US0.33/square meter /day being charged
to PAGCOR by SBMA which started in
April 2010 in connection with the
properties of Legenda International
Resorts Ltd. (LIRL) which have been the
subject of a writ of preliminary attachment
in Civil Case No. 04-10372 issued by the
RTC of Manila Branch 22 in the case filed
by PAGCOR against LIRL,

Said storage fee is being contested by
PAGCOR citing the above court case and
on account that they are powerless to
remove said properties which are in
custodial egis (in custody of the law) of the
RTC of Manila, Branch 22.

2. The Manila Times College of
Subic, Inc. [Formerly George
Dewey/Global City
Innovative College Subic]
(TMTCSD)

P34,696,677.21

This pertains to the accounts being
contested by the locator relative to the
Assignment of Leasehold Rights of Subic
Bay Medical Center, Inc. (SBMCI) to
TMTCSI who maintained that the latter
should not be held liable for the former’s
obligations including the 5% escalation
rate imposed on the Lease Agreement of
SBMCL

It was further informed that the previous
SBMA Board approved the payment
scheme for the uncontested portion of
TMTCSY s arrears and the rest be resolved
in court as presented by the AdHoc
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LOCATOR DIFFERENCE ' REMARKS

Committee handling the issue back then.
o To date however, no Amendment to the

& : Lease Agreement containing the said
- approval was signed and the payment
scheme was not perfected.

. B.Philippine Coastal Storage & According to management, the PCSPC,
Pipeline Corp. (PCSPC) had actually been contesting the whole
oE amount of Phpll,188,659.13, with the
. following breakdown:
' 1. Php35,408,495.08 — billed CUSA fees
covered by a court case under Civil
- Case No. 130-0-2012: Injunction
against the imposition of CUSA
STATUS: RTC Branch 72 resolved to
grant the injunction against the
mposition of CUSA filed by
petitioner Philippine Coastal. SBMA
_ . filed an appeal before the Court of
S Appeals but was denied. SBMA
. consequently filed a Petition for
Review on Certiorari before the
o Supreme Court. The Supreme Court
“however denied SBMA's petition as
- P8,763,051.91 well as the Motion for
Reconsideration of the resolution
i denying the Petition for Review on
Certiorari. :

' This was adjusted due to the court
resolution in favor of the PCSPC.

2. Php5,780,164.05 (US$119,178.64) —
contested by PCSPC due to their
allegation of undelivered Petroleum,

- Oil Lubricant (POL) areas in the Pier

Compound.

" The stand of management however
was that in fact SBMA had over-
delivered, if all areas occupied by
PCSPC are to be considered.

4.14 Based on the comments presented by Managément, the above were sample cases
needing further attention on the part of Management in order to arrive at a resolution that

44

o R




is advantageous on the part of the entity. Appropriate steps should be taken in order to
collect the accounts based on existing documents and evidence showing SBMA’s valid

claims against the subject parties. Likewise, necessary disclosure on the actual status of the
said accounts should be made.

4.15  On the other hand, it should be mentioned that for this year, the following dormant
accounts were no longer included in the samples for confirmation because during our

yearly confirmation for the last three years (2013-201 5) no reply was received from them,
viz:

Locator Amount
Financial Building(Subic Bay) Corp P879,088,148.39
Legenda International Resorts Ltd. 768,494,191.59
Financial Building Corp./Home Guaranty - 402,638,912.83
Corporation ,
Total $2,050,221,252.81

4.16 It should be mentioned however, that the above uncollected accounts represent the

top three receivable accounts of the SBMA thus, further affecting the net realizable value
of the accounts.

4.17  Although the results of the confirmation showed a very small percentage of
response from the sample-locators, it is still an indication that discrepancies between the
reported balances and the actual amounts due from the entity’s debtors may exist as

presented above.

4.18 A confirmation as of year-end was no longer made since this will involve the same
accounts.

4.19  As part of our audit procedures, we also inquired on the status of the sample
accounts of locators and residents who failed to reply. The following information was
gathered from the accounting department showing the status of said accounts as of
December 31, 2016:

Result of Inguiry Residents Locators

1 | Taken over by SBMA 0 10
2 | With court case 4 6
3 | Issued notice of default 0 4
4 | With payment scheme 1 4
5 | Being Contested 0 2
6 | Issued notice of demand 5 2
7 | Inactive ' 0 1
8 | Paid 0 1
9 | With offsetting agreement 0 1
10 | Referred to Legal Department 28 1

Total ' 38 32
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4.20  During our interview with the concerned accounting personnel, we were informed
that the contracts of the 28 residential accounts that were referred to the Legal Department

were pre-terminated, and that the subject properties were repossessed by SBMA and leased
out to other residents.

Failure to strictly impose the contract provisions on financial considerations

due from lessees

4.21 In the audit of sample delinquent receivable accounts, the following data were
gathered:

a) Palm Horizon Gateway Subic Ine.

Lease Term 50 years (April 8, 2011-April 8, 2016)
Consideration | US$ 1,400,000.00 (US$100.00/sq. m.)

Upon signing of contract, 15% upfront payment or amount of
U88210,000.00

Balance of US$1,190,000.00 shall be paid in five equal annual
installments, subject to a 5% interest rate per annum

April 8, 2012-1US$274,860.01

April 8, 2013- US$274,860.01

April 8, 2014- US$274,860.01 -

April 8, 2015- US$274,860.01

April 8, 2016- US$274,860.01

Security Deposit | Equivalent to 2 months’ rent or US$4,666.66 upon signing of lease

agreement
Development -Developments at Subic Bay Freeport by constructing a Commercial
Commitment Center Complex at a minimum development cost amounting to:

P15,000,000.00 — for Phase I within a period of 1-2 years from the
commencement of the lease.

$60,000,000.00 — for Phase TI within a period of 3-5 years from the
commencement of the lease.

-To employ 40-50 personnel at Subic Bay Freeport

Performance 5% of B75.0M if in cash or manager’s check upon signing of lease
Bond agreement

10% of $75.0M if in bank guarantee

30% of P75.0M if in surety bond.

4.22 Based on the Summary of Receivable Accounts in the IFMS, the lessee has an
outstanding payable of $1,584,300.05 to SBMA covering the upfront payment of
$210,000.00, equal annual installments of $274,860.01 from April 8,2012 to April 8, 2016,
totaling to $1,374,300.05 all converted to P78,771,398.49, in addition to the Common Use
Service Area (CUSA) fee of P1,565,491.20. The total charges recorded in the books as of
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year-end was P80,336,889.69 only, which was actnally understated by $3,750,000.00
representing the unpaid performance bond which was part of the financial considerations
due from the lessee upon signing of the lease agreement. Per validation made, it was

revealed that no such performance bond was paid either in cash, manager’s check, bank
guarantee or surety bond.

4.23  We inquired on the status of the said account and we were informed that a Notice
of Default was issued on September S, 2012 while letters of Meeting Invitation dated
August 22, 2013 and March 25, 2014 were likewise issued to the lessee.

4.24  According to the SBMA Accounting Department, the locator’s account still exists
due to the absence of any correspondence or information from the Account Officer (AO)
regarding the pre-termination and delisting of said account. Furthermore, our inquiry from
the concerned AO confirmed that said locator continues to hold its office without any
Certificate of Registration and Tax Exemption (CRTE).

b} Atmos Holdings, Inc.

Lease Term 50 years (September 19, 2011- September 18,
2061)

Consideration On or before February 18, 2012, the lessee shall
pay US$2,170,830.00:

Lot A5 Burgos St. beside Causeway Area,
Central Business District- US$1,700,040.00

Lot A6 Causeway Area, CBD- US$470,790.00

Security Deposit US$ 8,282.30 upon signing of agreement
Development Commitment -To develop Lot A-5 of the Leased Property
into a super yacht service facility of
international standard at a development cost of
| at least £12,000,000.00 within one year from
the signing of the lease.

Performance Bond 5% of P12.0M if in cash or manager’s check
payable within ten days upon signing of the
lease agreement

10% of P12.0M if in bank guarantee

30% of P12.0M if in surety bond.

425 Our evaluation of the account showed that the aggregate amount of
P115,320,563.70which consists of P107,933,667.60 ($2,170,830.00) lease contract
obligations due on February 18, 2012 and the Common Use Area (CUSA) fee of
P7,386,896.10 continued to be outstanding as of December 31, 2016.
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4.26  As per status inquiry made, we were informed that the Management issued a notice
of default on December 3, 2012. We also gathered that since there has been no formal
advice from the account officer pertaining to the pre-termination of the agreement of the
subject account, the same remains in the accounting records,

4.27  Based on the samples illustrated above, cases of non-implementation of the contract
provisions exist. In the case of the foregoing, it was noted that the financial obligations due
from the lessees such as the upfront payments, security deposits, performance bond, and
even rentals and the corresponding penalties were not strictly imposed contrary to what
was provided in the lease agreements.

428  Presented below are sample contract provisions which explicitly cite the
aforementioned financial obligations together with the corresponding sanctions/penalties:

CONSIDERATION

Section 1. Rental Payment — Within ninety days (90) days from the
signing of the lease agreement, the lessee shall pay the lessor the
rent Xxxx.

Payment of rental fees from the commencement of the lease
agreement shall be made regardless of whether or not the lessee
utilized the leased propertie/s].

Section 2. Security Deposit — In addition to the Joregoing payments,
upon signing of this lease agreement, the lessee shall remit to the
lessor xxxx to serve as security deposit for any unpaid utility billfs].

Section 3. Payment of Rental and Security Deposit- The lessor will
not make qvailable nor turn over the leased property to the lessee
unless the rental and the security deposit have been Jully paid xxxx.
Should the lessee enter the leased property without paying the said
rental and security deposit, the lessor has the right to eject the lessee
from the leased property.

429  Section 5. Committed Investment/Employment:

Accordingly, LESSE’s failure to comply with any of the Joregoing
commitments shall authorize LESSOR to pre-terminate this lease,
cancel the LESSEE s Certificate of Registration/Permit to Operate
or impose such other appropriate penalty/ies the LESSOR may
determine in is direction without the need of prior judicial
determination. : '

4.30  Section 6. Performance Bond
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i o

The Performance Bond shall be a pre-requisite for the renewal of
Certificate  of Registration and Tax Exemption/Registration
Certificate (CRTE/RC) of the LESSEE. In case of failure to post a
Performance Bond, penalties shall be imposed in accordance with

the SBMA Policy on Imposition of Performance Bond and its
Applicable Rates.

The LESSEE shall submit to the LESSOR annual report on the
progress of the above committed development project. The report
shall contain the progress of the committed project total incurred
costs and updated plan for the implementation of the said project.

Upon completion of the development works on the Leased Property
in accordance hereqf, the LESSEE shall submit a letter of compliance
to the LESSOR subject to verification by the SBMA Engineering
Department. Xxx

4.31  Article VIII Section 1 on Late Payments:

Additional rent shall be payable hereunder, by way of penalty, in
respect of any Rental Payment or other sum payable hereunder to
LESSOR (including sums forwarded by LESSOR hereunder due to
Jailure by LESSEE to perform its obligations hereunder) which shall
not have been paid within five (5) days after the date on which the
same shall be due and payable (an “Overdue Payment”) in an amount
equal to Twelve Percentum (12%) per annum of the amount of any
Overdue Payment; or portion thereof, during which any Overdue
Payment shall remain unpaid, such additional rent to be due and
payable upon the earlier of: (a) the payment of the Overdue Payment

to which it related; or (b) Three (3) Days after demand for payment
therefor by LESSOR.

432 A review of the usual salient provisions of the contracts/lease agreements
governing such matters as the required committed investments on the part of the lessee, the
payment/posting of the performance bond, the payment of rental and security deposits as
well as other special provisions disclosed the sanctions which should have been imposed
by Management such as the non-issuance of the permits to operate, Certificate of
Registration, non-turnover of property to the lessee, as well as the other grounds for
cancellation of the agreements which Management failed to impose as shown in the above
samples which were randomly selected for audit.

4.33  As presented in the two sample cases above, Management failed to impose

sanctions and penalties relating to the lessees’ late payments which resulted in uncollected
funds and probable losses on the part of SBMA.
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4.34  Relative to this, we requested from the SBMA Engineering Department copies of
verified reports on development commitment which was a requirement cited in the lease
agreements. Based on the letter-reply issued by the Engineering Department, verification
of development works by locators perfaining to physical structure improvements,
constructions or the likes as initiated by their transmittal of letters of compliance are

~ undertaken by the SBMA Building Permit and Safety Department through endorsement by

the SBMA Business Group. We further confirmed from the said department (Building
Permit Department) that no such development commitment reports were issued by them.

4.35  As stated in our AOM, we recommended that Management require the concerned
units to explain the reasons for the uncollected financial obligations due from the lessees
and for the non-imposition of the penalties/sanctions as stipulated in the contracts.
Presented below are management’s comments on the findings pertaining to laxity in the
implementation of the provisions of the lease agreements:

a) On the account of Palm Horizon Gateway Subic, Ing, ( PHGST)

On September 5, 2012, a Notice of Default was served to PHGSI giving the
same 30 days within which to pay its outstanding obligation and to comply
with its development commitment.

In aletter dated October 4, 2012 PHGSI contested the Notice of Default citing
as reason its negotiation with the Manila North Tollways Corporation
(MNTC) concerning its contractual commitment to fund the Tipo-Sunset
Street Road, SBFZ project. The said letter was then endorsed by Legal
Department to the Business and Investment Department for Leisure (BID-L)
for their comment and/or appropriate action.

On the other hand, Legal Department received a letter dated December 7,
2012 from PHGSI requesting for SBMA’s intervention and assistance to fast
track the approval of the Tipo-Sunset Street Road, SBEZ access by the Toll
Regulatory Board (TRB). Legal Department subsequently responded to
PHGSI that its request will be discussed with the BID-L in view of the
jurisdictional issues with the TRB on approval of projects along the Subic
Freeport Expressway.

Thereafler, several letters of invitation were sent by this Department in 2013
and 2014 to PHGSI to discuss its proposed payment of its outstanding
obligations with SBMA and the status of its development commitment.

While the Business Group had again recently endorsed the account of PHGSI
for the issuance of a Notice of Default, Legal Department however is
currently preparing a memorandum back to BID-L to request for presentation
before the SBMA Board for the pre-termination of the lease agreement with
PHGSI pursuant to provisions of the Board approved (Resolution No. 12-01-
4260) Imposition of Stringent Policies to Collect SBMA Receivables.
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As to the rental and CUSA fees, these were properly billed and booked

b) On the account of Atmos Holdings, Inc.(AHI)

A Notice of Default dated December 3, 2012 was issued by the Legal
Department anent AHD’s outstanding obligations and non-compliance with its
development commitments under the lease agreement.

AHI sought SBMA’s consideration where it requested to extend the period to
cure its contractual default which was approved by the SBMA Board on J anuary
8, 2013 through Board Resolution No. 13-01-4655.

Despite considerations given by SBMA, still AHI failed to settle its financial
obligations and comply with its development commitment. Thus, on June 16,
2016, through Board Resolution No. 16-06-5793, the SBMA Board of
Directors resolved to terminate and/or no longer renew AHI’s leases.

The Legal Department thereafter, upon instructions of the Management,
drafted a Notice of Pre-termination, Repossession, Disconnection and Take-
Over with Demands to Pay and Vacate and set to serve against AHI in
September 2016. However, the same was not served as it was conveyed that
AHI will request an audience to the SBMA Board and seek reconsideration.

Currently, as the account of AHI was endorsed again by the Business Group,
Legal Department will push through the issuance of the said notice of pre-
termination immediately,

The SBMA was able to forfeit the Cash Bond posted by AHI on May 13,2013
as per Treasury Department. As to the rental and CUSA fees, these were
properly billed and booked. ‘

4.36  Based on the reply submitted by managemenf, The Notices of Default were issued
way beyond the prescribed period under Board Resolution No. 12-01-4260 treating on the
Imposition of Stringent Policies to collect SBMA Receivables. Moreover, while there were

- actions taken as cited above, the laxity and the lapses noted in audit still resulted in

uncollected funds on the part of the entity.
Uncollected receivables — 3.9 billion

4.37  As presented earlier, out of the total receivables of P4,506,390,654.60, 86.73% or
$3,908,308,166.14 remained uncollectible as of year-end thereby resulting in a very low
13.27% net realizable value of the said accounts. Such huge amount of uncollectible
revenues which continuously accumulated over the years were indicative of the entity’s
weaknesses and inefficiencies within the systems involved in this particular area of
operations, thus depriving the SBMA and the government as a whole of much needed funds
to finance programs and projects in the pursuit of its mandate.
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438  According to Management there were approximately 1,550 locators with past due
accounts. We were informed that they were now in the process of reconciling and checking
the same in order to apply the advances to the past due accounts. In addition, they cited
that after exerting all efforts in the collection of said receivables, Management will proceed

with the request for write-off of the uncollected accounts pursuant to COA Circular No.
2016-005.

4.39  Further, it was mentioned that the Accounting Department A/R Housing Division
had updated the lessees’ billing addresses to ensure that the resident lessees receive their
billing statements on time. Relative to this, it was cited that part of the uncollected amounts
were the old accounts which also resulted to difficulties in the confirmation of the same
since the housing units have already been assigned to other lessees without obtaining
clearance from SBMA.

440 We recommended and Management agreed to (a) direct the accounting
department and the concerned units to study, determine and effect the appropriate
accounting treatment for the uncollected fines and penalties from Hualong Inc., and
recognize the same in the books if the recognition criteria are met pursuant to PAS
39; (b) review the claims of SBMA against PAGCOR, Manila Times College of Subic,
Inc. and Philippine Coastal Storage and Pipeline Corporation as well as the other
accounts with pending unresolved issues and take appropriate steps to expedite and
arrive at concrete resolutions which are advantageous on the part of the entity; (c)
strengthen, and improve the control and monitoring system to stop the lessee’s
practice of assigning the housing units te other parties/lessees without prior clearance

- from SBMA; and (d) (i) revisit the existing policies and sanctions for the uncollected

financial considerations due from lessees especially the proper implementation
thereof within the prescribed period as stipulated in the lease agreements; (ii) institute
reforms in the enforcement of the lease agreement provisions as well as in the
monitoring and collection of all amounts due from lessees in order to curtail the

increasing rate of uncollectible accounts, and thus promoting the interest of the
SBMA.

Doubtful balance of Accounts Payable account - P146.96 million

5. The correctness, validity and reliability of the reported balances of the Accounts
Payable amounting to P146,956,682.91 as of December 31, 2016 could not be determined
due to (a) the results of the confirmation showing net discrepancies of P248,535.32;
and (b) the long outstanding payables aggregating to P71,496,901.05 or 48.65% of the
reported balance as of year-end contrary to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting and Section 73 of the Manual on the New Government Accounting System
(MNGAS) requiring the faithful representation of the accounts in the Financial
Statements thereby affecting the total Liabilities JSigure as well as that of the

- corresponding expense accounts.
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- 5.1 We have audited the Accounts Payable, on a test basis, with reported balance of
$207,234,842.10 and P146,956,682.91 as of September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2016
respectively, and we noted the following deficiencies/errors:

52 Chapter 4 of the Framework mentions liabilities as one of the elements of financial
statements. A liability is a present obligation of the entity arising from past events, the
settlement of which is expected to result in an outflow from the entity of resources
embodying economic benefits.

5.3 In the case of the SBMA, Accounts Payable form part of the entity’s financial
hiabilities. Our audit showed the following breakdown of the reported balances as of

September 30, 2016 and December 31, 2016:

Account Account Name Amount as of Amount as of
Code September 30, December 31,
2016 2016

401-001 Accounts Payable- Unliguidated | P102,660,012.38 | P22,914,807.69
Obligations/Vouchers

401-002 Accounts Payable-Miscellaneous 617,405.12 017,405.12

401-003 Unpaid Salaries and Benefits 134,990.00 134,990.00

401-004 | Accounts Payable-Personal Services 5,047,897.28 8,790,163.91

401-005 | Accounts Payable-MOOE 13,410,482.48 §,159,982.37

401-006 | Accounts Payable- CAPEX 4,830,075.03 4,830,075.03

401-008 Accounts Payable- Current Year 51,759,605.17 63,058,883.37

401-009 | Accounts Payable- Current Year- 7,448,211.89 4,032,038.05
Personal Services

401-010 | Accounts Payable- Current Year- 20,000.00 3,554,398.80
CAPEX

401-011 Accounts Payable- Current Year- 8,870,839.34 18,416,449.26
Guaranty feeg

401-101 Accounts Payable- Long Term 12,435,323.41 12,447,489.31
Balance per General Ledger P207,234,842.10 | P146,956,682.91

- 54 In order to verify the existence of the outstanding obligations of SBMA. as of
September 30, 2016 (the initial cut-off date for the interim audit), the Audit Team sent 36
confirmation letters to SBMA’s creditors. Said letters covered P176,198,294.51 or 85.02%
of the P207,234,842.10 recorded payables. Of the 36 confirmation letters, ten creditors
responded, four letters were returned, undelivered to the addressees while the remaining
22 creditors failed to respond to the confirmation letters.

5.5 Based on the replies which we received from the ten creditors, a net variance of
P1,041,105,129.84 was arrived at as follows:
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Creditors Per Confirmation Per Books, Difference
September 30,
2016
I | Landbank of the P1,113,075,000.00 | P69,448,342.00 P1,043,626,658.00
Philippines {$22,950,000 X
_ P48.50)
2 | Bureau of the 12,871,216.59 8,870,839.34 4,000,377.25
Treasury
3 | Subic Enerzone 0.00 8,482,790.84 (8,482,790.84)
Corporation
4 | Berkman Systems, 4,507,066.18 2,318,871.32 2,188,194.86
Inc.& Center For
Environmental
ﬁ Studies & MGT
) (CESM)
e 5 | Development 889,846.65 889,825.65 21.00
i Academy of the
N Philippines
6 | Torres, Paquito 406,432.2 501,202.14 (94,769.94)
S Tolentino _
- 7 | Motas, Magdaleno 309,363.19 405,363.19 {96,000.00)
- Platon
B 8 | Caser, Apollo V. 320,000.00 320,000.00 0.00
= 9 | Fernandez, Jo 280,000.00 280,000.00 0.00
Raymundo O.
. 10 | Alviz, Condrado 106,937.64 143,498.25 (36,560.61)
- Mendoza
N TOTAL P1,132,765,862.45 | $91,660,732.73 $1,041,105,129.72
5.6  The audit team further validated the outstanding payables of SBMA as of December
31, 2016 by sending 44 confirmation letters with accounts totaling to 99,444,682.91 or
67.67% of the balance of accounts payable as of said date. Out of the said samples, three

were returned to sender, 34 had no response, and the remaining seven creditors responded
showing disparities as presented below:

Creditors Per Confirmation Per Books Difference
Pecember
31,2016
1 | Subic Water and P4,461,200.55 P4,366,767.66 P94,432.89
i Sewerage Company,
. 2 | Berkman Systems, Inc. ' 450706618 | = 2,318,871.32 2,188,194.86
: Center for
e Environmental Studies
w and Mgt. (CESM)
3 | Freeport Mansion 14,333.25 1,000,000.00 (985,666.75)
Do Leisure Corporation
: i 4 | Contel 316,450.00 917,705.00 (601,255.00)
o Communications, Inc.
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Creditors Per Confirmation Per Books Difference
"~ December
31,2016
5 | Patient Care 488,280.40 ; - 483,406.51  4,882.89
Corporation
6 | Office of the Solicitor 0.00 431,000.00 (431,000.00)
General
7 | Trends and 337,429.46 358,483.03 (21,053.57)
Technologies
TOTAL P10,124,768.84 P9,876,233.52 P248,535.32

5.7 As can be gleaned from the above schedule, the results of the confirmation as of
December 31,2016 showed a net effect of P248,535.32 which is an indication of an
understatement in the balance of the Accounts Payable as of year-end. It should be
mentioned that such misstatement likewise affects the total expenses for the year by the
same amount, which is contrary to Section 73 of the Manual on New Government
Accounting (MNGAS) requiring all financial data to be accurate and reliable.

5.8 In reply to our AOM, Management informed us that some of the discrepancies
noted have already been identified, analyzed and the necessary adjustments have been
effected while the recommended measures are being continuously taken to address the
items that remain to be validated. '

5.9  In our audit of accounts payable, alternative procedures have likewise been made

- by checking the subsequent disbursements pertaining thereto or other records to provide

evidence to support the existence assertion relative to the liability accounts, that is to

- establish if the reported balance as of year-end actually existed. The audit team examined

the subsequent disbursements made by SBMA after the year- end pertaining to the 34
creditors who failed to respond and the three confirmation letters that were returned. Based
on our analysis and evaluation, the subsequent transactions showed the existence and active

status of the subject accounts except for the following which were found to be part of the
dormant accounts:

Creditor Amount
I | Power Sector Assets & Liabilities Management $25,826,552.41
Corporation

2 | Subic Homes, Inc. 7,323,051.03
3 | Proconsult Inc. 4,801,129.47
4 | Mcx Motor Phils, Inc. 2,990,000.00
5 | Subic Bay Yacht Club, Inc. - 2,162,933.36
6 | Subic International Hotels Corp. 1,366,922.42
7__| Onlite LED Lighting Technologies Int'l Corp. 1,210,000.00
8 | Development Academy of the Philippines 899,825.65
9 | NPC-GENCO - 617,405.12
10 | EGCCV Trading 384,000.00
11 | Clerk of Court VIRTC-OCC Olongapo City 223,466.55

Total P47,805,286.01
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5.10  The balance of $47,805,286.01 from 11

of payables submitted by Management and the
accounts were already outstanding for more than

creditors was analyzed based on the aging

team found out that nine out of the 11
two years as shown below:

Creditor Amount Booking Date Age of Payable as of
. December 31, 2016
1. Power Sector Assets & P25,826,552.41 | October 11, 2012 [ Over 730 days (more
Liabilities Management than two years)
Corporation
2. Subic Homes, Inc. 7,323,051.03 | October 9, 2008- | Over 730 days (more
September 12, than two years)
2011
3. Proconsult Inc. 4,801,129.47 | December 30, Over 730 days (more
2008-January 6, than two years)
2010 .
4. Mecx Motor Phils, Inc. 2,990,000.00 | December 29, 1-30 days
2016
5. Subic Bay Yacht Club, 2,162,933.36 | December 28, Over 730 days (more
Inc. 2004-December than two years)
31,2012
6. Subic International 1,366,922.42 | January 31, 2007- | Over 730 days (more
Hotels Corp. | December 31, than two years)
2014
7. Onlite LED Lighting 1,210,000.00 | December 29, | 1-30 days
Technologies Int'l Corp. 2016
8. Development Academy 899,825.65 | December 30, Over 730 days (more
of the Philippines 2009-Janaury 12, | than two years)
2011
9. NPC-GENCO 617,405.12 | October 29,2004 Over 730 days (more
than two years)
10. EGCCV Trading 384,000.00 | October 24, 2014 | Over 730 days (more
than two years)
11. Clerk of Court VI RTC- 223,466.55 | December 1, 2009 | Over 730 days (more
OCC Olongapo City : | than two years)
TOTAL P47,805,286.01

5.11  Further review of subsidiary ledgers disclosed that a total P71,496,901.05 or
48.65% of the reported accounts payable balance remained to be outstanding for more than
two years as of December 31, 2016, the summary of which is presented as follows:

Account Account Name Amount (dormant
Code over 2 years as of
December 31, 2016)
401-001 | Accounts Payable- Unliquidated Obligations/Vouchers P2,452,646.34
401-002 | Accounts Payable-Miscellaneous 617,405.12
401-003 | Unpaid Salaries and Benefits 134,990.00
401-004 | Accounts Payable-Personal Services 4,076,338.17
401-005 | Accounts Payable-MOOE 7,922,371.59
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Account Account Name Amount (dormant
Code over 2 years as of
December 31, 2016)
401-006 | Accounts Payable- CAPEX 4,830,075.03
401-008 | Accounts Payable- Current Year 36,718,882.37
401-009 | Accounts Payable- Current Year- Personal Services 2,296,703.12
401-101 | Accounts Payable- Long Term 12,447,489 31
Balance per General Ledger P71,496,901.05

5.12  The presence of these long outstanding payables in the books is an indication of the
questionable validity of the said balances considering that they remained dormant and

unpaid for several years. Likewise, the corresponding expenses pertaining to these accounts
may have been misstated.

5.13  Management replied that the concerned divisions/ personnel of the Accounting
Department have analyzed the discrepancies noted in the confirmation of certain SBMA
payables. Following are the results of the analysis made:

Creditors Difference as of Management Remarks
Sept. 30, 2016
1 | Landbank of P1,043,626,658.00 | Already corrected as of Dec. 31, 2016
the Philippines
2 | Bureau of the 4,000,377.25 | Amount per confirmation represents the billing of
Treasury Bureau of Treasury as of Sept. 2016; while
balance per books is the accrual made for the
month of Aug. & Sept. 2016
3 | Subic Enerzone (8,482,790.84) | Balance per book represents estimated power
Corporation charges for the month of Sept. 2016
4 | Berkman 2,188,194 86 | For further verification/validation
Systems, Inc. &
Center For
Environmental
Studies &
MGT (CESM)
5 | Development 21.00 | The amount accrued by the Accounting
Academy of the Department was based on the approved budget per
Philippines attached BUR No. 09-07-02551
6 | Torres, Paquito (94,769.94) | Adjusted final pay paid on Feb. 28, 2017 under
Tolentino CH-17-00597
7 | Motas, (96,000.00) | Book balance represents salary adjustment and CY
Magdaleno 2015 PBB amounting to $390,363.19 and '
Platon P15,000.00, respectively. Recorded and paid under
APV 16-09-0184 / CH 16-03367 and APV 16-11-
0284/ CH 16-03848 -
10| Alviz, (36,560.61) | Balance per book is the unpaid balance of terminal _
Condrado leave which is subject to presentation of SBMA.
Mendoza clearance before payment. Confirmed amount is
equivalent to his payable to SBMA
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Creditors Difference as of Management Remarks
Sept. 30, 2016
TOTAL $1,041,105,129.72 |
Creditors Difference Management Remarks
as of Dec.
e 31,2016
: Subic Water and P94,432.89 | Management will coordinate with the Utilities
Sewerage Department. Necessary adjustments will be made
3 Commpany, Inc, accordingly.
Berkman Systems, | 2,188,194.86 | For further verification/validation
Inc. Center for
o Environmental
Studies and Mgt.
(CESM)

Freeport Mansion
Leisure

(985,666.75)

Amount of P14,333.25 are personal expenses of
Director Philip G. Camara, paid under OR No. 21003

Corporation dated 03/17/17; amount per books of B1 million
represents refund of performance bond which was
disbursed on Jan, 2017

Contel (601,255.00) | Amount per books pertains to unclaimed checks
N Communications, anzounting to P601,255.00 which was disbursed on
3 Inc. Jan. 2017; and outstanding amount of $316,450.00

which was processed on Jan. 2017 and disbursed on
Feb. 2017
Patient Care 4,882.89 | Difference refers to EWT which was remitted on Jan.
= Corporation 2017

Office of the (431,000.00) | Amount per books represents monthly allowance as

Solicitor General legal counsel to SBMA in connection with Task Force
Morong and Redondo for the period May 2016 to Dec.
2016 which was disbursed on Jan. 2017

- Trends and (21,053.57) | Amount per books represents outstanding account of

3 Technologies P£328,483.03 which was processed on Jan. 2017 &

disbursed on Feb. 2017; the remaining amount of
$30,000.00 represents unclaimed bidder’s bond.

TOTAL P248,535.32

5.14 Management likewise assured us that the concemed personnel from the three
divisions of the Accounting Department will ensure that delivery and acceptance of goods
and services takes place before they recognize and record these as payables. On the other
hand, the results of review made by management on certain payables which include those
outstanding for more than two years was provided to the team and is shown below:

- ' Creditor Amount Management Remarks
- 12. Power Sector Assets & | P25,826,552.41 | SBMA filed a request for mediation with the
. Liabilitics Management Office of the Government Corporate Counsel
Lo : Corporation (OGCC) on Jan. 6, 2017 and still waiting for
' the outcome of the case
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Creditor Amount Management Remarks

13. Subic Homes, Inc. 7,323,051.03 | Subject to review of all pertinent documents
available in AR Housing Division and will
immediately effect the adjustments to reflect
the contested claim

14. Proconsult Inc. 4,801,129.47 | Adjusted already under JGL-17-02-000383.
: The basis of the said adjustment was the
termination of contract as per Board Resolution
No. 16-01-5631
15. Mcx Motor Phils, Inc, 2,990,000.00 | Waiting for the procurement and all relevant
documents to be forwarded to the Accounting
: Department for processing of the payment

i | 16. Subic Bay Yacht Club, 2,162,933.36 | Subject to validation of supporting documents
Inc. on accerual made. Management will request
from the SBYC the details of transaction and
will immediately effect the adjustments
17. Subic International 1,366,922.42 | Subject to validation of supporting documents
: Hotels Corp. on accrual made. Management will request
. from the SIHC for the details and will
. immediately effect the adjustments

18. Onlite LED Lighting 1,210,000.00 | Waiting for the procurement and all relevant

Technologies Int't documents to be forwarded to the Accounting
Corp. Department for processing of the payment

19. Development Academy 899,825.65 | For further verification/validation by
of the Philippines Management

20. NPC-GENCO 617,405.12 | Related to Power Sector Assets & Liabilities

- Management Corporation account,
Management will immediately adjust the
balance as soon as the result of mediation is

received from OGCC
21, EGCCYV Trading 384,000.00 | Payment will be made upon issuance of
o Certification of Final Acceptance from Fire
Department
B 22. Clerk of Court VIRTC- 223,466.55 | Accounting Department will immediately
OCC Olongapo City close the accounts because the said amount has

been reprocessed under APV 09-12-0058 &
APV 09-12-0057 and paid under LA 09-00528
& 1A 09-00529, respectively

TOTAL P47,805,286.01

5.15  We recommended and Management agreed to (a) continuously analyze the
discrepancies noted in the confirmation and effect the adjustments where necessary;
and (b) ensure that recording of accounts payable is based on valid claims evidenced
by actual delivery of goods and rendition of services. A review of the long outstanding
payables should be made and effect necessary management actions thereon. If
deemed necessary, revert the corresponding amounts to the appropriate equity
account in accordance with existing rules and regulations.
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41 dormant asset and 24 liability accounts ~ P26.81 billion and P10.72 million,
respectively

6. The balances of 41 asset and 24 liability accounts totaling to
$26,812,209,632.12 and P10,721,472.57 representing 89.32% and 0.09% of total assets
and total liabilities respectively, remained unsubstantiated and/ or dormant for more
than five years (based on a 2011 cut-off), thus, casting doubt on their validity and
reliability thereby affecting the relevance and faithful representation of the financial
information as presented in the Financial Statements contrary to the requirements
set forth under the Conceptual Framework for Fimancial Reporting, Philippine
Accounting Standard (PAS) 1, and Sections 72 and 73 of the Manual on the New
Government Accounting System (MNGAS).

- 6.1  Financial statements are the means by which the information accumulated and

processed in financial accounting is periodically communicated to the users. PAS 1
mentions the financial statements as the structured representation of the financial position
and financial performance of an entity. They are the end product or main output of the
financial accounting process. Likewise, Sections 72 and 73 of the MNGAS provide that
the generation and the fair presentation of financial statements and supporting schedules
rests with the management of the reporting entity.

6.2 Qur financial audit covering the calendar year 2016 revealed that there were 65

accounts which remained unsubstantiated or non-moving/dormant since 2011 as shown
below:

(# of ACCOUNT TITLE Ending Balance
Accounts) / - CY 2016
Account
Code
ASSETS
149-006 Receivables - Treasuret's Peso Cash Collection 322,296.18
149-008 Receivables - Treasurer's Dollar Cash Collection 1,393,880.79
111-215 Receivables - Rent - Land, Building, and Equipment- 196,385.81
Residential
279004 Missing Peso Cash on Hand 856,754.66
124-003 Due from GOCC - GIF/GSIS 5,000.00
178-011 Prepaid Taxes - Equitable Card Network, Inc. 26,557.60
189-001 Deferred Charges - Asset - Utilities 73,499.76
103-001 Cash - Disbursing Officer - Corporate Treasurer 3,017.14
134-003 Advances to Officers & Employees (Intelligence Fund) 10,414.57
149-015 Other Receivables . 2,559.80
152-002 Medical, Dental, and Laboratory Supplies Inventory- 2,069.59
Botika ng Bayan
a1 Sub-total (this AOM) 2,892.435.90
various 6 Inventory accounts included in AOM No. 2017-01 $32,014,367.74
(2016) dated 2/6/17
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(# of ACCOUNT TITLE Ending Balance
Accounts) / CY 2016
Account
Code
various 5 Construction in Progress accounts included in AOM 6,026,500.56
No. 2017-003 (2016) dated 2/13/17
various 19 Property Plant and Equipment accounts included in 26,771,276,327.92
AOM No. 2017-005 (2016) dated 2/20/17
(30) Sub-total (previous AOMs) 26,809,317,196.22
41 GRAND TOTAL -ASSETS P26,812,209,632.12
LIABILITIES
412-029 Withholding Tax on Rental of Properties and
Equipment-CAPEX-5% £10,000.00
413-003 GSIS - Employees Compensation Insurance,
Employer's Share 288.71
413-009 GSIS - Multi-purpose Loan 251.96
413-013 GSIS - Employer/Employee Contribution, Voluntary 106,874.17
413-015 GSIS - Summer One-Month Salary Loan (SOS) 3,821.65
413-501 Due to PSALM - Power Universal Charges 803,047.25
422-017 Due to Other Funds - CD Ventures 455,711.50
422-018 Due to Other Funds - Home Guaranty Corp. (HGC) 4,625,327.70
422-019 Due to Other Funds - Le Video (Adidas) 351,811.92
422-021 Due to Other Funds - JFI 846,825.25
422-024 Due to Other Funds - Asiapro Cooperative 303,754.20
422-029 Due to Other Funds - Crystal Water 15,632.00
422-031 Due to Other Funds - Pag-ibig/GSIS Incentives 21,978.74
422043 Due to Other Funds - Sports & Defense Specialist 149,600.00
422-047 Due to Other Funds - Lovely. X Corp 143,235.20
424-004 Cash Bond - Port Charges 650,000.00
451-102 Security Deposit - Others 867,805.00
422023 Due to Other Funds - Freeport A-Plus 169,200.00
422-025 Due to Other Funds -Outlet People (Nike) 515,432.00
422-027 Due to Other Funds - Global Skyways & Resort 15,840.00
Corp/FBC : ]
451-004 Interest on Security Deposit 25,273.13
451-005 Guarantee Deposit - Port 300,000.00
451-006 Security Deposit - Others 111,309.60
459-103 Deferred Credits - Royalty Income 228,452.59
24) GRAND TOTAL -LIABILITIES $10,721,472.57

6.3  As presented above, in addition to the 30 asset accounts totaling
P26,809,317,196.22 which were already discussed in separate Audit Observation
Memoranda (AOMs), our analysis further disclosed that there were still 11 other asset
accounts which remained dormant with an aggregate amount of P2,892,435.90 thus,
arriving at a total dormant asset account balance of $26,812,209,632.12 or 89.32% of the
total reported assets in the Statement of Financial Position. In the case of the liability

" accounts, our examination disclosed that there were 24 dormant accounts aggregating to

P10,721,472.57.
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6.4

Our verification further showed the following:

a) the amounts of P1,158,197.83 and P1,365,507.32 pertaining to the dormant
assets and liabilities respectively, were part of the account balances which were
reclassified in 2008 under General Journal Entry Voucher No. JGL 08-05-000497
dated May 31, 2008 which remained unsubstantiated up to this time. The

breakdown of the said amounts is shown below:

Account Title Ending Balance | Existing Balance
CY 2016 Since

Receivables - Rent - Land, Building, and 196,385.81 5/31/2008
Equipment- Residential
Missing Peso Cash on Hand 856,754.66 5/31/2008
Due from GOCC - GIF/GSIS 5,000.00 5/31/2008
Prepaid Taxes - Equitable Card Network, 26,557.60 5/31/2008
Inc.
Deferred Charges - Asset - Utilities 73,499.76 5/31/2008
Total 1,158,197.83
Due to Other Funds - Freeport A-Plus 169,200.60 5/31/2008
Due to Other Funds -Outlet People (Nike) 515,432.00 5/31/2008
Due to Other Funds - Global Skyways & 15,840.00 5/31/2008
Resort Corp./FBC
Interest on Security Deposit 25,273.13 5/31/2008
Guarantee Deposit - Port 300,000.00 5/31/2008
Security Deposit - Others 111,309.60 5/31/2008
Deferred Credits - Royalty Income 228,452.59 5/31/2008
Total 1,365,507.32

= b) part of the dormant accounts are the Receivables-Treasurer’s Peso Cash
Collection in the amount 0f P322,296.18 and Receivables — Treasurer’s Dollar Cash
Collection of $25,315.67 or P1,393,880.79 (based on reported fixed peso
equivalent) in connection with a robbery which occurred in the Treasury
Department and which remained uncollected since 2005; and

¢) missing peso cash on hand (account no. 279-004) amounting to 856,754.66
remained non-moving since 2008.

- 6.5 It should be mentioned that items (b) and (c) above had already been the subject of
previous AOMs. However, the same remained unacted upon.

6.6  Based on the foregoing, the materiality of the amounts as well as the number of
accounts involved and the length of the period of dormancy may affect the relevance and
the faithful representation of the financial information presented in the Financial
Statements. This is in contravention with the requirements and the qualitative
characteristics set forth under the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting.
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6.7  The responsibility for the fair presentation and reliability of financial statements

rests with the management of the reporting agency, hence, all appropriate steps should have
been taken to ensure that all financial data presented were accurate, reliable and truthful.

6.8  Management replied that the Accounting Department will comply with our
recommendation to review the non-moving and dormant accounts. We were informed that
the concerned departments have already exerted efforts to locate the necessary documents
to support the adjustments, reclassification or closing of the dormant accounts accordingly.

6.9  We recommended and Management agreed to (a) require the Accountant to
exert more efforts to review the non-moving/dormant accounts, locate the necessary
documents to substantiate their balances, and effect the mecessary corrections/
adjustments; (b) take appropriate action to recover the amounts due arising from the
robbery that transpired in 2005 and to substantiate the missing peso cash on hand
account balance and effect applicable measures to recover the same; and (c) see to it
that the presentation of all financial information are in accordance with the
Conceptual Framework and existing standards in order to be useful to all
stakeholders and users thereof.

Unrecognized impairment losses/ Non-compliance with PAS 36

7 The accounting department failed to comply with the provisions of PAS 36 on the
assessment of assets and recognition of any impairment thereof thus, failing to present
a more reliable carrying value of the assets considered obsolete, unserviceable or
damaged, therefore affecting the fuair presentation of the assets and the income in the
Statement of Financial Position and in the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
respectively.

7.1 PAS 36 prescribes the procedures that an entity applies to ensure that its assets are
carried at no more than their recoverable amount. An asset is carried at more than its
recoverable amount if its carrying amount exceeds the amount to be recovered through use
or sale of the assets. If such is the case, then the asset is considered as impaired and the
entity is required to recognize an impairment loss.

7.2  Impairment reflects a decline in the utility of an asset to the entity that controls it.
Under the aforementioned standard an entity is required to assess at the end of each
reporting period whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. In doing so,
the entity may consider the external sources of information such as the significant decline
in the asset’s market value as a result of the passage of time or normal use, and significant
changes with adverse effects on the entity’s technological, market, economic or legal
environment. Likewise, internal sources of information may also be considered such as
obsolescence or physical damage of the asset, significant changes with adverse effect to
the entity such as the asset becoming idle, plans to discontinue or restructure the operation
to which an asset belongs, plans to dispose of an asset before the previously expected date
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or available evidence that indicates the economic performance of an asset is, or will be,

~ worse than expected.

7.3 Inthe case of the SBMA, we noted that only the receivables are being assessed for
any indication of impairment although they are still using the old allowance for doubtful
account instead of the allowance for impairment account as prescribed under the new chart
of accounts.

7.4  The scope of PAS 36, which is among the standards for implementation in 2016,
covers the accounting for impairment of all assets other than inventories, assets arising
from construction contracts, deferred taxes, among others because there are other standards

~ which are applicable to said accounts.

7.5  Under the Revised Chart of Accounts for Government Corporations which was
issued under COA Circular 2015-010, dated December 1, 2015, the following are sample
impairment accounts to be used if warranted:

Allowance for Impairment-Receivables

Allowance for Impairment - Inventories

Accumulated Impairment Losses — Land, Land Improvements
Accumulated Impairment Losses — Infrastructare Assets
Accumulated Impairment Losses — Building Structures
Accumulated Impairment Losses — Machinery Equipment
Accumulated Impairment Losses — Transportation Equipment

e & & & & & O

7.6  As can be gleaned from the above, all of these assets are subject for testing for
impairment. Based on the definition provided in PAS 36, carrying amount is the amount at
which an asset is recognized after deducting any accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment losses thereon. It is therefore important for the agency to conduct
the assessment and to recognize the impairment of assets, if deemed appropriate based on
the procedures provided in the standard, to reliably reflect the carrying amount. Otherwise,
if only the depreciation is recognized then the carrying amount of the assets which are also
considered impaired may be overstated.

7.7  Our audit disclosed that in the case of the motor vehicles alone, showing total cost
of P157,858,993.47 and total accumulated depreciation of $129,534,545.22, an assessment
of the impairment of the entity’s vehicles should have been made since we have gathered
some evidences showing that there were a lot of these vehicles which are no longer
serviceable, actually damaged and awaiting disposal as presented below:

Type of Vehicle | Serviceable _Unserviceable For Disposal Total
Light Vehicle 107 57 _ 57 221
Heavy Equipment 27 47 27 101
Total 134 104 84 322
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7.8 As appearing in the above schedule, out of the 322 transportation equipment only
134 are serviceable while the remaining 188 or 58% are actually considered unserviceable,
damaged or awaiting disposal. Based on the reported carrying amount of P28,324,448.25,
only the depreciation was considered when in fact the condition and performance of
majority of the said assets were no longer beneficial to the entity. If the impairment is not
recognized, then the realizable value and the resulting carrying amount appearing in the
Statement of Financial Position may not be fairly presented. Likewise, the reported net
income is overstated due to unrecognized impairment losses

7.9 Management assured us that they will take the appropriate steps to implement our
recommendation. The concerned departments (PPMD, L.ADD, and Maintenance and
Transportation Department) were directed to prepare an action plan and timetable to initiate
and ensure the assessment and valuation of assets under their direct supervision.
Appropriate action will be taken upon receipt of the final appraisal report which would be
used as basis in adjusting the Accounting Department’s records. The concerned
departments were directed to prepare an action plan and timetable to initiate and ensure the
assessment and valuation of assets under their direct supervision. Appropriate action will
be taken upon receipt of the final appraisal report which would be used as basis in adjusting
the Accounting Department’s records.

7.10 We recommended and Management agreed to direct the accounting
department to comply with PAS 36 by assessing the conditions of its assets subject for
impairment and to recognize the impairment loss if warranted, to reflect the
realizable value of the assets which is also necessary for the Financial Statements to
fairly present the account balances and thus, become more useful to the stakeholders
and users of the same.

Lapses in internal control system -~ P1.47 billion

8 Disbursement amounting to One Billion Four Hundred Sixty Six Million Six
Hundred Eighty Eight Thousand Pesos (P1,466,688,000.00) representing the power
subsidy granted to HHIC-PHIL, Inc. for the period November 2009-December 2015 was
made in spite of the absence of the proper validation of the claims made which is an
indication of lapses in the Corporation’s internal control system, thus, casting doubt on
the propriety, validity, accuracy and reliability of the huge amount involved in the said
transaction.

8.1 On February 28, 2006 SBMA and HHIC —PHIL entered into a lease agreement
covering 199++ hectares of the inland and coastal areas at Mt. Redondo, located at the
Subic Bay Freeport Zone, to be used in HHIC-PHIL’s shipyard operations.

- 8.2 Inorderto provide incentive to its foreign investment undertaking, Executive Order

(EQ) No. 701 dated February 22, 2008 was issued by then President Gloria Macapagal
Arroyo directing all concerned government entities to support the power infrastructure
requirements and the investment of HHIC-PHIL in Subic and in Mindanao. Under Section
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4 of the said EO, HHIC was provided discounted generation and transmission rates by the
National Power Corporation (NPC) and the National Transmission Corporation
(TRANSCO), respectively, at $0.0491 for year zero to year six and $0.0600 for year seven
to year ten in its shipyards located in the Subic Bay Freeport Zone and in Mindanao.

8.3  Based on the 4™ addendum to the lease agreement which was notarized on
December 30, 2013, said discounted power rates were discontinued with the privatization
of the NPC and the TRANSCO. However, with the Philippine government’s desire to
continue the provision of discounted power rates to the HHIC PHIL and in order to honor
its commitment to the promotion of foreign investments, annual subsidies to the various
investment promotion agencies like the SBMA were provided, intended for the utilization

in a manner that shall have the effect of continuing the provision of discounted power rates
in accordance with EO No. 701.

8.4  Among other terms and conditions, the following were cited in the aforementioned
agreement which was signed by the President of HHIC-PHIL and then SBMA Chairman
and Administrator as authorized and approved by the SBMA Board of Directors to wit:

Section 3. SECURING POWER SUBSIDY FROM THE NATIONAL
GOVERNMENT FOR DISCOUNTED POWER RATES — SBMA  shall
propose,  request and/or apply for a subsidy from the
National Government, to be sourced from or through the pertinent allocations
in the General Appropriations Act (GAA) of 2014, 2015, 2016, 2017 and 2018,
if there be any, for the purpose of extending discounted power rates to HHIC-
PHIL in accordance with the following combined generation, transmission
and distribution rates: (i) P3.00/kwh for the period July 2013 to December
2015; and (i) P4.00/kwh for the period covering January 2106 to February
2018.

8.5  Our audit showed that Special Allotment Release Order (SARO) No. BMB-C-16-
0000411 dated January 27, 2016 amounting to Two Billion Twenty Nine Million One
Hundred Eight Thousand Pesos (£2,029,108,000.00) was issued to cover the release of the
National Government subsidy to the SBMA to cover power subsidy granted to HHIC-
PHIL. Likewise, advice of Notice of Cash Allocation (NCA) of even date, in the amount
One Billion Four Hundred Sixty Six Million Six Hundred Eighty Eight Thousand Pesos
(P1,466,688,000.00) was issued by the Department of Budget and Management (DBM) to
partially cover the cash requirement of the aforementioned allotment.

8.6  Our audit disclosed further that on February 17, 2016 Leiter of Authority (LA)
Voucher no. 16-00042 in the amount of One Billion Four Hundred Sixty-Six Million Six
Hundred Eighty-Eight Thousand Pesos (P1,466,688,000.00) was approved for payment of
initial subsidy granted by the National Government to the HHIC PHIL covering the period
December 2009 to November 2015. Said transaction was paid through LBP Subic Branch

Manager’s Check No MC 0000008467 of the same date.
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- 8.7  Based on our examination of the supporting documents attached to the voucher we
noted the following deficiencies:

. ¢ There was no evidence presented showing that a proper and complete validation
o= of the power consumption and bills of the HHIC PHIL covering the period stated
" in the voucher (December 2009- November 2015) was made to establish an
accurate and reliable basis for the payment of the whole amount of
P1,466,688,000.00 to the investor.

¢ Perusal of the documents showed that it was provided in the attached flowchart
pertaining to the power subsidy payment, that upon receipt of the HHIC PHIL’s
claim for reimbursement, the Utilities Department is required to validate the
claim as well as the supporting documents submitted. The duly authorized
official is then required to sign the reviewed summary sheet as a proof of the
correctness of the amount being paid as well as the completeness and
authenticity of the supporting documents presented by the claimant.

e Our audit, however, disclosed that no such proof of complete validation was
attached contrary to the requirement as set forth in the flowchart. Instead, a
memorandum from the OIC of the Public Works and Technical Services Group
(PWTSG), Utilities Department was submitted stating therein the initial

b observations and discrepancies noted in connection with their on-going review

' of documents, as follows: 1) there was no copy of receipt of payment for the

period May 26, 2011 to June 26, 2011; 2) Records showed only payment for the

. generation charge for the period May 26, 2010 to June 26, 2010 in the amount

of $677,430.05 instead of power billing in the amount of P100,557,204.99.

o o It was likewise mentioned in the memorandum that since the checking and
' validation of records would take time and that the initial subsidy represents only
about 40% of the total HHIC-PHIL.’s claims, therefore, it was recommended that
the Budget Utilization Request for the whole amount be approved, and that
corrections will just be made on the succeeding billing(s) in case of any
discrepancy found on the documents during the review later on.

o The payment of such subsidy to HHIC-PHIL amounting to P1,466,688,000.00
without fully establishing the correctness of the amount considering that there
were discrepancies which were already noted during the initial phase of their

- review is an infraction of the basic principles of internal control. Internal control

system policies and procedures are primarily designed to safeguard assets and
resources of the entity as well as the accuracy and reliability of information by

. preventing and detecting errors on a timely basis. Accurate information is

needed by management to carry out operations since reliable information is used

in making critical management decisions especially if it involves such material
amount. '
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s In our AOM, we likewise requested the submission of documents for reference
in our audit of the said transaction

8.8 In response to our AOM, Management commented that there were no deficiencies
committed by any of the concerned SBMA officials since the transaction was supported by
the necessary documents such as the Special Allotment Release Order (SARO), Notice of
Cash Allocation (NCA), and the Budget Utilization Request (BUR). Likewise, it was
mentioned that the amount of 1,466,688,000.00 was already validated and determined by
the Department of budget and Management (DBM) based on records received from other

- agencies involved under EO 701 such as the Department of Trade and Industry (DTI), the

National Transmission Corporation (TRANSCO), and the National Power Corporation
(NPC). According to Management, SBMA’s utilities department was actually re-validating
the claim and not actually validating the same for the first time.

89  Management also mentioned that the entire transaction must be viewed from the
perspective of the National Government and the national interest as a whole and not just
from the view of a routine disbursement by the SBMA. It was also cited that HHIC is one
of the biggest foreign investments in the Philippines which resulted to generation of
employment for the Filipinos.

8.10 Finally, Management commented that further delaying the release of the subsidy to
HHIC until the Utilities Department would have finished its own re-validation would serve
to prolong and aggravate the injustice suffered by HHIC which faithfully abided by all of
its commitments and obligations despite the national government’s failure to comply with
its obligations under EO 701.

8.11 We recommended that Management adhere to the prescribed financial
controls prior to disbursement of funds especially those involving huge amounts in
order to fully safeguard the interest of the government and likewise avoid any audit
suspension or disallowance.

AUDIT TEAM’S REJOINDER:

8.12 While the team recognizes the significant contribution of the HHIC to the
Philippine economy through the creation of jobs for Filipinos, among others, we reiterate
our stand on the need to fully substantiate the re-validation made prior to the disbursement
of government funds (National Government’s Subsidy to HHIC-Phil) through SBMA
pursuant to existing rules and regulations on the matter.

8.13 Management is teminded that the necessary internal control procedures must
always be applied since the SBMA is one the implementing agencies where all material
disbursements are made and therefore in case of deficiencies or lapses, the concerned
officials and employees of the entity may be held responsible or liable.
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Lack of adequate logistics and equipment for entity’s mandate on environmental protection
and management

9. The entity’s mandate on environmental protection and management could have
been better attained had there been more adequate logistics and equipment support to
ensure the full implementation of and monitoring of the compliance to environmental
standards within the Subic Freeport Zone (SFZ). Likewise, the objective of providing
world-class facilities and services responsive to the needs of stakeholders could have
been better achieved had the four marine vessels (two patrol, one rescue, and one
garbage collection and firefighting vessel) and the eight transportation equipment (three

garbage compactors and five dump trucks) intended for solid waste disposal been fully
operational.

9.1  Republic Act 7227 created the Subic Bay Metropolitan Authority (SBMA) as the
operating and implementing arm of the Bases Conversion and Development Authority to
operate, manage, develop and administer the Subic Special Economic Zone. The SBMA’s
mandate is to develop the Freeport zone into a self-sustaining, industrial, commercial,
financial and investment center to generate employment opportunities in and around the

_ zone, and to attract and promote productive foreign investments.

9.2  Among the Authority’s powers and functions presented in Section 10 of RA 7227
is the adoption and implementation of measures and standards for environmental pollution
control of all areas within its territory, including but not limited to all bodies of water and
to enforce the same.

9.3  Chapter IX of RA7227 deals on the environmental regulations within the economic
zone. It is stated under Section 95 that SBMA recognizes the importance of maintaining a
high degree of environmental quality as a precursor to the sustainable economic
development of the areas both under and adjacent to its jurisdiction.

94  Relative to this, SBMA’s Ecology Center is the unit primarily responsible for the
protection of the environment and natural resources within the SBF and/or jurisdiction of
the SBMA. It is responsible for the implementation of all environmental and natural
resources conservation and protection programs adopted or assumed by the SBMA. It
undertakes functions associated with environmental management, including enforcement,
monitoring, permitting, training and education, and contingency and emergency planning.
Among its principal functions are the following:

¢ Enforce environmental rules, laws, regulations and guidelines within the SBF;

o Issue permits and clearances based on Philippine environmental rules, laws and
regulations;

¢ Conduct regular monitoring and inspection on proposed project sites and locator
premises to ensure compliance of project proponents and existing locators to
environmental standards in all stages of the project cycle, i.e., pre-construction,
construction, operation, abandonment;
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9.5

Initiate actions relative to the implementation of envirommental laws, rules,

regulations, and guidelines, as well as SBMA’s guidelines on fines and penalties;
and '

Promulgate rules and regulations on environmental protection, conservation,
compliances and improvement.

SBMA had set the following strategic priorities and goals/objectives for the year

2016 in support of its vision and mission statements:

9.6

Develop the Subic Bay ports to be the preferred logistics gateway in Northern and
Central Luzon;

To make Subic Bay Freeport a better, safer, cleaner and healthier place;

To make Subic Bay Freeport the premier and unique playground for meetings,
incentives, conferences/conventions, and events (MICE), sports and eco-tourism
activities in the Philippines;

Develop world-class infrastructure facilities and services responsive to the needs of
stakeholders; and .

To develop an efficient delivery of quality administrative support services.

As shown above, one of the priorities set for the year was to make SBF a better,

" safer, cleaner and healthier place. On the part of the Ecology Center, its four divisions had

likewise set its targets aligned to the aforementioned goals, to wit:

1. Permitting and Environmental Quality Management Division

Functions:

e Oversee the evaluation of all incoming business proposals in relation to its
possible impact to the environment;

¢ Ensure the implementation of the Philippine Environmental Impact System
during the evaluation process of all incoming investors;

e Jssue in a timely manner all relevant environmental permits and clearances
related to the handling and disposal of toxic and hazardous wastes, tree
cutting/trimming, tourism related businesses and operation of pollution control
devices;

¢ Conduct monitoring of new locators in compliance to environmental standards
in its construction stage; and

e Review and recommend the issuance of Building and Occupancy Permit to
ensure that all environmental mitigating measures are incorporated in the plans.

Presented below are the division’s accomplishments vis-a-vis its plans/targets for
the year:

Plans/Targets ' Major Accomplishments
Handling of complaints within 60 minutes | 71/71 complaints processed within 40
minutes
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Plans/Targets

Major Accomplishments

Process 90% of environmental permits
and clearances

4,564/4,564 environmental permits and
clearances processed

Conduct of environmental monitoring:
Monitor 90% of locators for their
environmental compliance

Monitor 90% of biodiversity sites

413/350 locators inspected for
environmental compliance
72/51 biodiversity sites inspected

Conduct 3 environmental fora, events and
related activities for PCOs,

Conducted 6 environmental fora, events

EOs and other stakeholders

2. Protected Area Management Division

L Functions:

_ o This division is in charge of monitoring ambient water, bio-physical and air
quality within SBF.
e Conducts research and updates on environmental statistics (water and air quality,
. flora and fauna)

= ¢ Implements and manages biodiversity conservation programs
' s Responds to hazard calls as needed.

Plans/Targets Major Accomplishments

Conduct 90% biodiversity monitoring | Action on 90% biodiversity monitoring
reports reports

Forest monitoring, river monitoring,

i Buffer zone monitoring, bat counting,
= mangrove monitoring, marine/coastal
monitoring

Hazard calls responded

3. Policy and Monitoring Division

s b Functions:

e Responsible in the monitoring of existing SBFZ locators in their compliance to
environmental standards, particularly in the operations stage and based on the
issued Environmental Compliance Certificate or submitted Environmental
Management Plan. -

« Respond to environmental hazard calls and pollution incident reports.

e Initiates the issuance of notice of Violations, warning letters and conducts
hearings related thereto.

o Initiates the imposition of fines and penalties on violations.

o Establishes linkages between the Ecology Center and locators to promote self-
regulation in poltution control and prevention.
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PLANS/TARGETS Major ACCOMPLISHMENTS

Act upon complaints and hazard calls | Responded to 71 hazard calls and pollution
within the prescribed time of 60 | incident reports within the required time
minutes Conducted 413 environmental compliance
monitoring of locators

4. The Social Development Division

e Tasked to promote environmental awareness and initiate coordination and
cooperation projects/programs with different stakeholders

PLANS/TARGETS Major ACCOMPLISHMENTS
Conduct four environmental fora, events | Conducted four environmental fora and
and related activities for stakeholders related activities

Community extension work

97 A comparison between the reported accomplishments and the plans/targets set for
the year would show that the Ecology Center performed well during the year. However, it
was noted that there were no accomplishments reported pertaining to sanctions applied on
the violations noted or monitored specifically on the violations against the environmental
laws, rules, regulations and guidelines set within the SBMA. While there were reported
hazard calls responded and complaints acted upon, there were no data submitted on the
violations, fines and penalties imposed, if any.

9.8  During our inquiry with the Manager of the Ecology Department, we were informed
that there were constraints which hindered the full monitoring and implementation of the
Center’s functions. Among these were the inadequate equipment such as the lack of
sufficient means of transportation for mobility around the Freeport area, and the lack of
adequate personal protective equipment needed during inspection.

9.9  Relative to this, we also inquired from the Seaport Department and the Maintenance
Department which are also concerned with the aforementioned target priority area of
making SBMA a cleaner and a healthier/safer place, and we noted the following: four out
of the seven motor vessels owned by SBMA remained unserviceable, non-operational and
need repair, namely:

1. MYV llanin- patrol vessel | 2. MV Cubi — patrol vessel
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3. MYV Redondo — rescue vessel 4. MV Kalayaan — garbage collection and
firefighting vessel

9.10  Considering the intended use of the above vessels, the continuous non-operation of
the same would further mean the non-provision of the services needed to be rendered to
the entity’s stakeholders, which is contrary to the goals and objectives set during the year.

9.11 In addition, it was also noted that due to non-availability of fully operational
garbage trucks, SBMA had to rent two dump trucks incurring additional cost amounting to
P1,850,220.00 in 2016. Furthermore, based on the status report submitted by the
Maintenance Department, only four out of the 12 vehicles/equipment assigned for solid
waste disposal are serviceable, thus affecting the quality of service being rendered
pertaining to solid waste management which is supposed to be one of the areas being
regulated and monitored by the entity.

9.12  Inresponse to our AOM, the Senior Deputy Administrator for Operations informed

us that the Seaport Department, PPMD as well as the Bids and Awards Committee for
Goods and Services are now working to fast-track the procurement of a service provider
for the repair and rehabilitation of the subject vessels.

913 Likewise, the Manager of the Maintenance Department and the Deputy
Administrator for Public Works, Technical Services Group (PWTSG) informed us that the
procurement of additional garbage trucks is now on-going,

914 We recommended and Management agreed to revisit its priorities to include
actions geared towards addressing the mandate of the SBMA as a whole, specifically
in the attainment of its goal of making SBMA a safer, healthier, and a cleaner place
as embodied in the agency’s set goals and objectives.

Gender and Development
10.  Total budget for GAD during the year in the amount of P5,412,620.00 was 97.8%

below the required threshold as set forth under the Philippine Council on Women/
National Economic and Development Authority/Department of Budget and
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institutionalize gender mainstreaming within the entity. Likewise, lapses have been noted
in the GAD focal point system’s project implementation as in the case of diaper changing
stations which remained uninstalled, and the continuous lack of GAD impact assessment

tool. Moreover, lapses in the documentation of GAD-related activities/transactions have
been noted.

10.1  We examined the agency’s CY 2016 appropriation for Gender and Development

- {GAD), verified reported accomplishments in relation to the agency’s approved GAD

work plan and budget, and audited actual and attributed GAD-related expenditures for
the year, and noted the following observations:

a. Deficient budget for GAD

10.2  Section 14, Article If of the Philippine Constitution provides “The State recognizes
the role of women in nation-building, and shall ensure the fundamental equality before the
law of women and men.” Relative to this, numerous laws and regulations have been passed
and established to enshrine this policy. Pursuant to RA 9710 or the Magna Carta for
Women (MCW), all sectors of the government shall formulate their annual GAD Plans and
Budgets (GPBs) within the context of their mandates to mainstream gender perspectives in
their policies, programs and projects. GAD planning shall be integrated in the regular
activities of the agencies, the cost of implementation of which shall be at least 5% of their
total budgets.

10.3 For CY 2016, the SBMA’s Corporate Operating Budget was $4,827,076,000 as
approved by the Department of Budget and Management (DBM). Of the said amount,
$5,412,620.00 was allotted for GAD programs, activities and projects intended to address
the gender issues of the agency. However, such amount was 97.8% below the required
budget of P241,353,800.00. Under the Philippine Commission on Women/National
Economic and Development Authority/ Department of Budget and Management
(PCW/NEDA/DBM) Joint Circular No. 2012-01, the budget for GAD should at least be
5% of the approved total budget of the entity which in the case of SBMA was not met as
shown below:

Particulars Amount
Approved Corporate Operating Budget P4,827,076,000.00
Threshold 5%
Required budget for GAD purposes 241,353,800.00
Reserved budget for GAD purposes 5,412,620.00
Difference (Deficiency) $235,941,180.40

10.4  As can be seen above, the amount allotted for GAD during the year was way below
the required amount of P241,353,800.00, thus failing to meet the requirements set forth
under the guidelines for the preparation of GAD plans and budgets. Relative to this,
expenses that should have been charged to the budget such as the salaries of the agency
personnel doing GAD-related work had already been discussed in the previous year’s
report. However, the same have not been considered in the preparation of this year’s
budget.

74




b.  GAD Budget not fully utilized/lapses noted in project implementation

10.5  Ouwur audit showed that as of December 31, 2016, SBMA spent P4,133,820.70 or
80.34% of the total budget allocated for GAD-related activities based on the certified
amount of expenses issued by the Accounting Department, details of which are as follows:

GAD Objective/Activity 1 Approved Actual
N — ' Budget Expenditure

Unimplemented PAPs

Formulation of GAD Impact Assessment Tool for the Agency |  $300,000.00 | PO

Partially Implemented PAPs

Installation of diaper changing areas in public comfort rooms 125,000.00 98,712.90
_ | in the SBFZ areas
Lo Launching of the Agency’s Bi-Annual GAD Magazine “WE 732,950.00 533,785.00
. Speak™ and GAD Komiks “Juana” and radio program “The

Gender Hour”

Sub-total ' P857,950.00 | P632,497.90

PAPs Exceeding Allotted Budget

Gender Sensitivity Seminar to SBMA Employees 400,000.00 608,700.00

Benchmarking activity addressing Violence Against Women 200,000.00 | 234,283.07

Cases (VAWC) in the Agency’s Women’s Desk '

Sub-total P60G,000.00 P842.983.07

PAPs Not Included in the Approved Plan

Capital expenditures such as purchase of communication 642,011.00 95,527.00

equipment, information and technology items , furniture and
fixtures, and advocacy materials and mstallamon/estabhshment
of GAD Center/interior oftice renovation

Completed PAPs
Holding of Women’s Month Celebration and Conduct of 18- 500,000.00 459,510.72
. day Anti-Violence against Women and their Children
e " | Awareness Campaign
Promotion of GAD awareness among Indigenous People and 300,000.00 297,842.86
vulnerable women in SBFC ]
Conduct of Gender Awareness Seminars and Fora to SBFC 100,000.00 72,425.00
Locators and Schools
B Gender Analysis Training for SBMA Management 300,000.00 215,091.00
. Gender Analysis, Gender Mainstreaming Training for 1,545,000.00 1,517,973.15

members of the GAD Focal Point System departmental
representatives, and concerned employees

Sub-total 2,745,000.00 | $2,562,842.73
Total _ P5,144,961.00 | 4,133,820.70
Percent of utilization 80.34%

10.6 As can be seen above, there was underutilization of the amount allotted for GAD.
The appropriated amount for GAD PAPs that remained not fully utilized resulted in non-
achievement of the targets set in the Annual GAD plan, while the partial implementation
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of the other projects hindered the optimum realization of benefits that could have been
derived therefrom.

10.7 Review of the GAD Accomplishment Report (AR) for CY 2016 as submitted and
generated from the Gender Mainstreaming Monitoring System (GMMS) maintained by the
Philippine Commission on Women (PCW) further showed the following observations
pertaining to the utilization of the GAD budget during the year:

* Based on report submitted, there was an approved budget of P300,000.00 for the
formulation of GAD Impact Assessment Tool for the Agency. However, inquiry
with the GAD Focal Person disclosed that the project has not been implemented
due to change in management.

e Such failure to formulate and adopt an impact assessment tool precludes the
evaluation of the effectiveness of the GAD projects and the determination as to
whether the gender issues identified have been actually addressed not only through
the outputs but through the attainment of the desired outcomes as well.

s In line with addressing the GAD issue on non-gender sensitive public comfort
rooms within the Freeport, procurement of five diaper changing stations in the
amount of $98,712.90 was made during the year. Records showed that these have
already been delivered in June 2016. However, as of this writing, said diaper
stations have not yet been installed hence, the benefits that could have been derived
from the project were not realized.

10.8  Our audit further disclosed that there were instances where the GAD PAPs’ actual
expenditures exceeded the allotted budget. In our review of the Accomplishment Report
(AR), there were no documents presented to show the approval of the incurrence of the
expenses in excess of the budget for the two GAD activities, details as follows:

GAD Objective/Activity Approved Actual Variance
Budget Expenditure
Gender Sensitivity Seminar to SBMA P400,000.00 | P608,700.00 | $(208,700.00)
Employees
Benchmarking activity addressing VAWC 200,000.00 234,283.07 (34,283.07)
cases in the Agency’s Women’s Desk 5
Total P600,000.00 | PR42,983.07 | P(242,983.07)

10.9 Section 9.2 of the PCW/NEDA/DBM Joint Circular No. 2012-01 states that
Agencies shall inform the PCW in writing if there are changes in the PCW-endorsed GAD
Plan and Budget as a result of revising the GPB based on the approved GAA and or the
need to implement additional PAPs relevant to current gender issues or GAD-related
undertakings as needed. PCW, in turn, shall acknowledge receipt of adjusted GPB and
shall inform the agencies if the GAD PAPs or activities in the adjusted GPB are acceptable.

10.10 Furthermore, our examination disclosed that the amount of $95,527.00 was
incurred for the purchase of communication equipment, advocacy materials and supplies,

76




| Gender Sensitivity seminar for the Tribong Kalalakihan ng Pastolan 177,500.00

installation/establishment of GAD Center/Interior Office renovation and purchase of
information and technology items. However, said activities were not part of Agency’s
PCW-endorsed GAD Plan for CY 2016, hence, inconsistent with the provision of PCW-
NEDA-DBM Joint Circular No 2012-01 which, provides that PAPs that are not in the
agency's PCW-endorsed GAD Plan cannot be charged to GAD budget,

10.11 On the other hand, the total amount pertaining to completed PAPs for the year was
$2,562,812.73. Further review and post-audit of supporting documents relating thereto was
made and we noted deficiencies, some of which are presented herein:

On the conduct of Gender-Sensitivity Seminars for Indigenous People

10.12 In line with the promotion of GAD awareness among indigenous people and
vulnerable women in the Subic Bay Freeport Zone, the following activities were

- undertaken, to wit:

Particulars Amount
Gender Sensitivity seminar for the Tribong Kababaihan ng Pastolan $107,142.86
held in Baguio City on April 19-21, 2016

held in Clark, Pampanga on August 17-19, 2016
TOTAL P284,642.86

10.13 As part of our audit procedures, a review of the list of attendees/participants was
made. We noted that based on the list of indigenous people employed by SBMA which we
obtained from the Human Resource Department, only 12 or 40% out of the 30 attendees of
the Seminar for Tribung Kababaihan ng Pastolan while nine or 42.9% out of the 21
participants of the Seminar for Tribung Kalalakihan ng Pastolan were among those
appearing in the master list, which means that more than one-half of the number of
attendees were actually non-indigenous people contrary to the primary objective of the
activity.

c. Lapses in the documentation of transactions

10.14 In our audit of disbursement vouchers (DVs) for the payment of expenses of various
seminars conducted/attended on GAD-related issues during the CY 2016, we noted the
need for further documentation on the following:

e Attendance to GAD International Training/Seminar

On June 6-10, 2016 the Chairman of the GAD Focal Point System of the SBMA
attended the seminar on Introduction to Participatory Gender Audit for Facilitator
Seminar which was held in Turin, Italy with total cost of P132,856.00 being
subsidized by the entity. Post —audit of transactions disclosed that necessary
attachments such as any document justifying/supporting the necessity of attending
such training abroad, proof of invitation to attend, and a certification stating that said
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training is not being offered in any of the local training institutions like PCW or
universities were not part of the documents submitted to the audit team.

10.15 The need to submit the aforecited documents is pursuant to Section B.2.e.2 of the
specific guidelines cited in COA Circular 2014-001 dated March 18, 2014, entitled Revised
Guidelines in the Audit of Gender and Development (GAD) Fund and Activities in
government agencies which provides that attendance in trainings abroad on GAD may be
allowed provided there is a specific authority from appropriate government oversight
agencies, said trainings are not offered in any of the local training institutions or
universities and provided that knowledge from such training shall be cascaded to the
employees of the concerned agency xxx.

10.16 Likewise, based on Sections 1.1.4.2 and 1.2.4.2 of COA Circular No. 2012-001
dated June 14, 2012, which prescribes the Documentary Requirements for Common
Government Transactions the following should have been part of the documents to support

the expenses pertaining to foreign fravel/seminar/training:

Letter addressed to the agency inviting participants (issued by the foreign country)
Acceptance of the nominees as participants (issued by the foreign country)
Programme Agenda and Logistics Information

Certificate of Appearance/attendance from training/seminar/participation
Narrative report on trip undertaken/Report of Participation

10.17 Management commented that there is now an on-going training program on the
Harmonized Gender and Development Guidelines (HGDG) intended to make all concerned
departments become aware of the proper attribution of projects and programs and thus,
meet the required budget allocation.

10.18 On the lapses noted pertaining to project implementation, we were informed that
the plans and activitics which were not carried out during the year under audit wiil be
implemented under the current administration. On the other hand, there were documents
submitted to our Office for evaluation to determine whether the lapses in the documentation
of transactions cited in the AOM have already been addressed.

10.19 We recommended and Management agreed to direct the whole GAD Focal

" Point System as well as all other units concerned to (a) comply with the existing

guidelines for the preparation of the GAD plans and budgets; (b) improve further the
project implementation schemes in order to fully attain the desired outcomes as duly
assessed and validated; and (c¢) comply with the necessary documentary requirements
related to all GAD transactions in order to avoid audit suspensions.

Compliance with tax laws

11. Withholding taxes amounting to P128,384,470.31 were remitted to the Bureau of
Internal Revenue (BIR) within the required period in accordance with Revenue
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Regulation No. 2-98 dated April 17, 1998 and Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 17-
2003 dated March 31, 2003. However, taxes withheld pertaining to previous years in the
amount of P666,235.51 remain unremitted due to unreconciled records.

11.1  Revenue Regulation No. 2-98 dated April 17, 1998 and Revenue Memorandum
Circular No. 17-2003 dated March 31, 2003 provide the guidelines on the remittance of
taxes withheld by withholding agents.

Loz 11.2  In the case of the SBMA, it was poted that during the year, in addition to the
. beginning balance of P1,908,107.64 expanded withholding taxes withheld and remitted
totaled £5,819,205.57 and P5,983,676.27, respectively. On the other hand, total taxes
withheld on compensation during the year amounted to $125,924,282.88 while total
remittances amounted to P122,400,794.04 including the beginning balance of

P3,618,790.67. A summary of the entity’s comphance with the aforementioned tax laws is
presented below:

a. Expanded Withholding Taxes

Total Due to BIR
Menth Taxes Withheld (Balances + Taxes Remitted (Ending
Current) Balance)
Begimming
Balance P1,908,107.64 PO PO £1,908,107.64
i January 481.892.14 2,389,999 78 1,247,286.01 1,142,713.77
February 481,535.32 1,624,249.09 447,763 52 1,176,485.57
March 566,491.83 1,742,977.40 451,908.35 1,291,069.05
o April 359,956.90 1,651,025.95 578,789.95 1,072,236.00
May 417,378.85 1,489,614.85 321,392.76 1,168,222.09
June 264,092.18 1,432,314.27 433,194.48 999.119.79
July 431,553.58 1,430,673.37 274,522.08 1,156,151.29
August 625,196.19 1,781,347 48 454721.75 1,326,625.73
September 795,890.36 2,122,516.09 465,055.10 1,657,460.99
October 244,697.91 1,902,158.90 824,886.21 1,077,272.69
November 268,667.70 1,345,940.39 314,280.22 1,031,660,17
December £81,852.61 1,913,512.78 169,875.84 | $1,743,636.94
Total 125,819,205.57 - $5,983,676.27
- b. Withholding Taxes on Compensation
MONTH TAXES TOTAL TAXES TAX DUE TO BIR
WITHHELD (Beg. + REMITTED |ADJUSTMENT| (ENDING)
Current)
Beg. P3,618,790.67 g PO P0 | 3,618,790.67
: Balance
C January 2,529,565.54 | 6,148,356.21 2,864,124.27 754,666.40 | 2,529,565.54
. February 2,501,340.69 | 5,030,906.23 2,529,565.54 2,501,340.69
March 7,328,064.53 | 9,829.405.22 2,501,340.69 7,328,064.53
April 4,003,97541 § 11,332,039.94 7,328,064.53 4,003,975.41
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MONTH TAXES TOTAL TAXES TAX | DUE TO BIR
WITHHELD | = (Beg.+ REMITTED | ADJUSTMENT| (ENDING)
Current)

May 4,003,014.39 | 8,006,989.80 4,003,975.41 4,003,014.39
June 3,986,719.45 | 7,989,733.84 4,003,014.39 3,986,719.45
Tuly 74,030,303.87 | 78,017,023.32 3,986,719.45 74,030,303.87
August 5,381,324.57 | 79.411,628.44 |  74,030,303.87 5,381,324.57
September 5,062,905.70 | 10,444,230.27 5,381,324.57 5,062,905,70
October 5,904,016.00 | 10,966,921.70 5,062,905.70 5,904,016.00
November 4,805,439.62 | 10,709,455.62 5,904,016.00 4,805,439.62
December 6,387,613.11 | 11,193,052.73 4,805,439.62 P6,387,613.11

TOTAL | P125,924.282.88 P122,400,794.04 P754,666.40

11.3  Analysis and review of the entries in the General Ledger and records from the
accounting office showed that the balance of the Due to BIR account as of December 31,
2016 of $8,131,250.05 was composed of the unremitted tax for 2016 of 7,464,996.54,
which was remitted to the BIR in January 2017, and expanded withholding taxes pertaining
to previous years amounting fo P666,253.51, which remained unremitted due to
unreconciled records.

114 We recommended and Management agreed to imstruct the concerned
Accounting Department personnel to trace and reconcile the available records
pertaining to previous years and make sure that all taxes due the government are
withheld and remitted to the BIR within the prescribed period as per BIR Revenue
Regulation No. 2-98 and Revenue Memorandum Circular No. 17-2003.

11.5 Management informed the team that the concerned Accounting Department
personnel will establish the subsidiary ledgers pertaining to the expanded withholding tax
balance and that the necessary adjustments and/or remittances will be made accordingly.

Compliance with R.A. No. 8291, Government Service Insurance System (GSIS) law

12. Premium contributions, loan amortizations and other amounts due to
Government Service Insurance System (GSIS) were deducted and duly remitted to the
System in compliance with R.A. No. 8291, the Government Service Insurance System
law of 1997, and its Revised IRR. However, the amount of P150,661.72 pertaining to
Jorwarded balances from previous years remained unaccounted for as of year-end.

12.1  Section 14 of the Revised Implementing Rules and Regulations (IRR) of R.A. No.
8291, The Government Service Insurance System (GSIS) Act of 1997, in consonance with

Section 6 (b) of the same Act, states the following provisions on remittance of contributions
to GSIS:

a. Section 14.1 - Each government agency shall remit directly to the GSIS the

employees’ and government agency’s contributions within the first Ten (10) days
of the calendar month following the month to which the contributions apply. The
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remittance by the government agency of the contributions to the GSIS shall take

priority over and above the payment of any and all obligations, except salaries and
wages of its employees.

b. Section 14.2 - The government agency shall also deduct from the fixed monthly
compensation of the employee the loan amortizations (consolidated loans, policy
loan, emergency loan, housing loan, and other loans), premium payments
(optional, pre-need and other non-life insurance) and other amounts due the GSIS.

c. Section 14.3 - The said amounts shall be remitted to the GSIS within the first Ten
(10) days of the calendar month following the month when the deductions were
effected, accompanied by supporting lists in the form prescribed by the GSIS.

12.2  Audit of the premium contributions, loan amortizations and other amounts due to
GSIS for CY 2016 showed that SBMA complied with the provisions set forth by the
aforementioned law. Premium confributions, loan amortizations and other amounts due to
GSIS amounting to 56,293,168.63 were remitted as shown below:

MONTH GSIS TOTAL GSIS GSIS DUE TO
PREMIUM (Beg. + PREMIUM PREMIUM GSIS
WITHHELD Current) REMITTED REFUNDED (ENDING)
TO
_ SEPARATED
L m ‘ EMPLOYEES
w Beg. $2,592,598.51 PO PO PO | P2,592,598.51 |
Balance '
January 2,23421027 | 4,826,808.78 2,223,134.55 2,603,674.23
February 2,223,23535 | 4,826,909.58 2,482.338.14 1,995.40 | 2,342,576.04
March 4.225,018.90 6,567,594 .94 2,220,698 48 1,093.28 4,345,803.18
April 2,004,44508 | 7,250,248.26 4,210,193.04 | 7,707.69 1 3,032,347.53
May 2,897,022.78 i 5,929,370.31 2,608,922.03 2,7702.61 | 3,017,745.67
June 2,871,783.84 | 5,889,529.51 2,883,564.19 11,108.72 | 2,994,856.60
July 24,019,392.46 | 27,014,249.06 2,871,783.84 01 24,142,465.22
August 3,277,573.50 | 27,420,038.72 2,871,037.10 4,066.68 | 24,544,934.94
September 3,213,141.36 | 27,758,076.30 8,902,404.29 1,070.80 | 18,854,601.21
October 3,677,244.34 | 22,531,845.55 4.471,449.58 979.47 | 18,059,416.50
November 3,433,417.55 1 21,492,834.05 ] 17,111,087.58 3.010.68 | 4,378,735.79
December 3,460,873.87 | 7,839,609.66 3,136,555.81 8,930.10 | P4,694,123.75
TOTAL | P58,437,359.30 _$56,293,168.63

12.3  Inquiry from the accounting department disclosed that the unremitted balance of

- P4,694,123.75 represents premiums amounting to P4,543,462.03 which were remitted in

January 2017 while the remaining P150,661.72 pertains to forwarded balances from
previous years which are still subject for analysis and reconciliation.




124 We recommended and Management agreed fo instruct the concerned
Accounting Department personnel to trace, review and reconcile all documents
supporting the Due to GSIS account and effect adjustments, if necessary.

12.5 Management informed the team that the concerned Accounting Department
personnel will trace, review and reconcile all supporting documents pertaining to the “Due

to GSIS” account and that the necessary adjustments or remittances thereof will be effected
accordingly.

Enforcement of Audit Suspensions, Disallowances and Charges

13.  Audit suspensions and disallowances amounting to P970,370.42 and
P15,451,322.12, respectively, remained unsettled as of year-end contrary to COA
Circular No. 2009-006 dated September 15, 2009. Likewise, audit disallowances prior to

the effectivity of the aforementioned Circular amounting to P140,605,881.78 remained
unsettled.

13.1  During the Calendar Year 2016, no notices of charges were issued. However, as of
December 31, 2016 the total outstanding/unsettled disallowances stood at P15,451,322.12.
the breakdown of the said amount is as follows: '

ND No. Date Particulars Amount
ND-SBMA 9-Nov-10 | Payment of Board of Directors per | P5,740,000.00
2010-11-001 diem/allowances covering the period
(2009) from January to December 2009
ND-SBMA 12-Nov-10 | Payment of BODs per diem/allowances
2010-11-002 covering the period from January to 700,000.00
(2010) December 2010
ND#  11-001- | 12-Oct-11 | Calbayar Trading/IMG Horse
(10) Equipment Trading - payments of 10 2,600,000.00

patrol horses
ND# 2012-001 | 23-Feb-12 | Raffle items during the 2011 SBMA
(2011) Christmas Party 10,718.21
ND# 2012-001 | 23-Feb-12 | Sponsorship for the costumes used by
(2011) the Public Service Group. 9,243.00
ND# 2012-001 | 23-Feb-12 | Ms. Paulita R. Yee - meals consumed
(2011) upon attending the wake of the father of 2,928.57
an SBMA official
Special  Audit | 26-Mar-12 | Payments for the procurement of special
ND No. 2012- and field uniforms of SBMA employees 2,420,603.99
001 (2011)
ND No.: 2013- | 14-Feb-13 | Payment for the consultancy fees of 12
001 (2011) office consultants for CY 2011 3,940,492.01
ND No.:. 2013-| 18-Feb-13 | Payments of various expenses charged
002 (2012) against the account "All Other Services" | 27,336.34
Total 1 P15,451,322.12

82




13.2 It should be mentioned that during the year no settlement of disallowances was
made and that the same status of the above disallowances exists, viz:

Status Amount

Denied appeals in the disallowances ' P11,460,603,99
Disallowances on appeal 3,987,789.56
With partial settlement ' 2,928.57
Total  P15451,322.12

13.3  In addition to the above, the following are the disallowances and charges prior to
the effectivity of COA Circular No. 2009-006 dated September 15, 2009, which remained
unseitled as of December 31, 2016:

Particulars Amount
Outright disallowances ' P498,466.26
Charges ' 3,952,059.46
Suspensions that matured into disallowances 136,155,356.06
Total P140,605,881.78

13.4  On the other hand, total suspensions as of year-end amounted to £970,370.42, the
details of which are presented below:

NS No. Date Particulars Amount
1 | NS  No.2016- | 06-Oct-16 Payment for meals expenses incurred 48,137.00
001(2015) on meetings re: GAD PAPs
2 | Ns No. 2016-] 06-Oct-16 Payment for international travels re: 349,187.79
002 (2015) GAD PAPs
3 | Ns No. 2016-; 06-Oct-16 Payment for various expenses relevant 291,468.43
003 (2015) to trainings and strategic planning re:
GAD PAPs
4 | Ns No. 2016-: 06-Oct-16 Payment for travelling expenses 71,577.20
004 (2015) relative the benchmarking conducted
for GAD PAPs
5 | Ns No. 2016- ]| 06-Oct-16 210,000.00
005 (2015)
Total $970,370.42

13.5 It is worthy to note that documents have been submitted in compliance with the
requirements set forth under the aforementioned Notices of Suspensions. However, said
settlements are still subject to the team’s evaluation. Once determined compliant, the
corresponding Notice of Settlement will be issued accordingly.

13.6 We recommended that Management cause the immediate settlement of the
audit disallowances.
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PART III - STATUS OF IMPLEMENTATION OF PRIOR YEAR’S
UNIMPLEMENTED AUDIT RECOMMENDATIONS

Out of the 29 audit recommendations contained in the Annual Audit Report for CY 2015

3>

s nine were fully implemented while 20 were partially implemented as shown below:
Status and
= Observations and : Reason
- Recommendations Ref. | Management Comments for Partial/Non-
Implementation

L The cash balances of | CY
P2,759,175,878.81 as of| 2015
December 31, 2015 were | AAR
understated by net amount of | Finding
P355,200.82 due fo | No. 1
unrecorded (a) collections of
P8,283,618.67; (6)
disbursements of
P7,438061.63; and (c)
adjustments of P490,356.22.

i We recommended that the:

e a. Accountant (i) initiate Management replied that | Fully
action to facilitate the Treasury Department is | Implemented

' identification of payors responsible in the proper
o making payments thru identification of the payors

. telegraphic transfers; making payments thru

' telegraphic transfers. The
b said  department s
b - constantly making follow

) up and sends letter request
£ to the SBMA depository
banks to identify the
payors for the issuance of
the appropriate official
receipts and recording of
the Accounting
Department.
(ii) recognize the unbooked Last June 23, 2016, the | Fully
collections and SBMA Board of Directors | implemented
disbursements immediately already approved the
upon identification of the Policy and Operating
concerned  debtors  and Guidelines on Handling
creditors, respectively; and Unidentified Collections
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Status and

Observations and Reason
Recommendations Ref. | Management Comments for Partial/Non-
Implementation
that will address the
untimely recording of
collections. On the issue of
unbooked disbursements,
we will have a meeting
with  the Treasury
Department to set a
deadline for the
submission of
disbursement vouchers for
| the  timely recording
thereof.
(1ii) determine the status of The ftreatment for long | Fully
the long outstanding credit outstanding credit memos | implemented
memo and adjust balances; was included in the Policy
and and Operating Guidelines
on Handling Unidentified
Collections. Under the said
policy, credit memos that
remain outstanding for 12
months at year end will be
recorded as other income.
b.  Treasurer submits Management has | Fully
disbursement vouchers coordinated the matter to | implemented
(PVs) and their support the Treasurer. A meeting
documents on time to the with the Accounting and
Accounting Department for the Treasury will be made
recording of transactions. to set a deadline for the
submission of
disbursement vouchers for
the timely recording
thereof.
2. Of the Accounts | CY
Receivable-Trade balance of | 2015
P4,106,523,069.14 as of | AAR
December 31, 2015, | Finding
P3,494,758,729.88 or 85.10% | No. 2

were doubtful since their
existence and correctness

85




Observations and

Status and

locators in the Integrated

Financial
System (IFMS) particularly
their addresses and status
their accounts.

Management

on
of

Reason
Recommendations Ref. | Management Comments for Partial/Non-
Implementation
| were not established.
Moreover,  the  reported

receivables of
P489,327,497.45 or 11.92% of
the total trade receivables
which had been in the books
since CY 2013 with aged three
to four years or more which
remained non-moving.

We recommended that the:

a) Accountant (i) take serious Management  is  still | Partially
efforts to ascertain the validity waiting for the final court | implemented
of the receivables; and (if) decision before they can
review the long outstanding proceed to demand for
non-moving  accounts for payment or record

| proper disposition; and adjustment. One of the
accounts  (Subic  Bay
Industrial  Park) had
already been adjusted due
to the final court’s decision |
in favor of the Locator.
(b) Database Administrator Management will comply | Partially
update the data base for with the recommendation | implemented

to update the database for
locators in the IFMS. They
have recently sought the
assistance of the Business
Group in obtaining the full
information of all the
locators including their
billing addresses, email
addresses, contact
numbers etc. for these will
also be used for the plan of
SBMA to send billings
electronically or thru
email. This will also help
them in sending follow-
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Observations and
Recommendations

Ref.

Management Comments

Status and
Reason
for Partial/Non-
Implementation

ups for payments of the |
billings regularly.

3. There were lapses in

the grant and liquidation of
cash advances in CY 2015
such as (a) granting of cash
advances of P14,130,375.75 to
SBMA officers who were not
duly designated as disbursing

| officers; and (b) inadequate

documentation of liquidations
totaling P35,543,100.00
contrary to COA Circular Nos.
97-002 and 2012-001 dated
February 10, 1997 and June

| {14, 2012, respectively, and

exposed government funds to
risks of misappropriation or
loss and also cast doubt on
their regularity.

We recommended that the
Accountant refrain from

a. granting cash advances to
officers who are not duly
designated as disbursing
officers; and

b. processing of grant and
liguidation  of  cash
advances which are not
adequately documented.

CY
2015
AAR
Finding
No.3

The Accounting
Department will ensure
that the cash advance shall
be granted to duly
designated disbursing
officers.

Likewise, the Accountant
shall ensure that cash |
advance  granted 1o |
Officers and Employees |
and the liquidation thereof
shall be properly
documented and made
within the prescribed

period of liquidation.

Fully
Implemented

Fully
Implemented
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Status and

reconciliation of inventory
records on a regular

periodic basis.

Reason
Recommendations Ref. | Management Comments for Partial/Non-
Implementation

4. The Inventory account | CY

balances as of year-end of | 2015

P107,844,168.70 were | AAR

overstated by a net amount of | Finding

P88,815,332.04 due to (a)|No.4

unrecorded  Spare  Parts

Inventory of P5,337,791.86;

(b) inclusion in the balance of

non-existing stocks of

P2,361,825.11; and (c)

unaccounted inventories of

P91,791,298.79 resulting from

lack of reconciliation between

the accounting and property

records in violation of Section

43 of the Manual on the New

Government - Accounting

System (NGAS), Vol. I

We recommended that the:

a. Accountant investigate and Management had already | Partially
ascertain the causes of the teken steps to  hire | implemented
unrecorded spare parts, non- additional personnel to
existing and unaccounted handle/assist in  the
inventories of reconctliation of records.
P5,337,791.86, We were also informed
P2,361,825.11 and that they have already
P91,791,298.79, adjusted the account Spare
respectively, then make the Parts Inventory to take up
proper adjustment thereof; the excess spare parts
and amounting to

P5,337,791.86 as indicated
in the CY 2012 Inventory
Report of the Inventory
Committee.
| b. Accountant and Property Management  concurred | Partially
Officer conduct with our recommendation | implemented

to require Property and
Accounting Personnel to
reconcile their records.
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Observations and
Recommendations

Ref.

Management Comments

Status and
Reason

for Partial/Non-

Implementation

] No. 2 of the
2016 AAR

Reiterated in
Observation

| book value of

| P2,469,739,025.93; and (d)

.| undetermined amount.

b) The reported balances
of Property Plant and
Equipment (PPE) accounts as
of December 31, 2015 with net

P24,583,771,933.78 were
unreliable due to (a) inclusion
in the balances the costs of the
demolished  buildings and
other  structures  totaling
P1,095,575,641.60; (b
doubtful  existence  and
valuation of PPE accounts
amounting to
P23,472,295,260.25; (c)
incomplete report on the
Pphysical count of assets worth

discrepancy in the fotal land
area of the agency’s real
estate property per accounting
and property records by
1,013.22 hectares of

We recommended that:

a. Head of the Land and
Asset Management
Department (LAMD) (i)
furnish the Accounting
Department with copies of
reports on the demolished
buildings, facilities and
other structures; (ii) exert
effort to follow-up the

request from the DENR on

CYy
2015

Finding
No. 5

Management informed us
that they are conducting an
ongoing inventory of all
buildings and structures
inside the Freeport Zone
that were formerly under
the US Naval Base
Facility and hoping to

the year. They are likewise

complete it by the end of

Partially
implemented
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Recommendations

Ref.

Management Comments

Status and
Reason

|for Partial/Non-

Implementation

~ the actual result of the

survey made for the total
land area for business use
by the SBMA as basis of
adjustments of the
accounting records; and
(1i1) provide the
Accounting  Department
the assessed value of the
Land Improvements,
Buildings and  Other
Structures;

. Head of Procurement and

Property Management
Department (PPMD) fast
track and complete the
inventory of PPE and
submit a report thereon the
Accounting Department;

. Heads of LAMD and

PPMD furnish the
Accounting  Department
with copies of records of
disposal such as Inventory
and Inspection Report and
auction sale to effect
necessary book
adjustments  for  the
demolished
buildings/structures;

. Accountant, after receiving

the reports on the
demolished buildings and
other structures, Inventory
and Inspection Report and
Auction Sale, effect the
necessary adjustments in
the books; and

looking for some available
records of the demolished
buildings that can be used
as a basis in reporting to
the Accounting
Department.

Furthermore, they had a
meeting with the
Community Environment
and Natural Resources
Office (CENRO)-
Zambales concerning the
approval of the survey plan
for the secured area of
SBF. It was recommended

during the meeting that|

SBMA conducts a ground
survey of the Subic Bay
Freeport so that CENRO
can use it as basis of their
evaluation and approval.
SBMA will hire a private

surveyor (consultant) to
facilitate the survey.

The : Accounting
Department will ensure
that the derecognition of
the demolished buildings
and other structures will be
made upon receipt of the
complete documentation

Partially
implemented

Partially
implemented

Partially
implemented
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Status and

i Reason
Recommendations Ref. | Management Comments for Partial/Non-
Implementation
from the LAMD and the
PPMD,

e. Heads of PPMD and The Accounting | Partially
LAMD and the Accountant Department ~ will  be | implemented
reconcile their records on meeting with the LAMD
PPE accounts, and the PPMD to discuss

the matter and for the | Reiterated in

continuous reconciliation | Observation

of the PPE accounts. { No. 1 of the
2016 AAR

6. The balance of | CY

Working Animals account as i 2015

of year-end was unreliable due | AAR

to the (a) non-inclusion of the | Finding

values of nine cavalry horses | No. 6

with no appraised values; and

(b) inclusion in the balance of

the costs of the 19 dead

animals totaling

P1,021,778.00,

We recommended that the
a. Veterinary Consultant The Office of the Senior | Fully

provide the Deputy Administrator for | implemented
Accounting  Office Support Services sent a

with the appraised
value of the cavalry
offspring;

letter to the
Veterinary Consultant
dated March 8, 2016,
requesting for the
appraised value of nine (9)
unbooked work animals to
be used by the Accounting
Department as basis in
booking the said work
animals. Management will
immediately provide COA
with a copy of the Journal
Entry pertaining to the
booking of the said

SBMA |
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Observations and

Status and

Reason
Recommendations Ref. Managgment Comments for Partial/Non-
Implementation
animals as soon as Journal
Voucher is prepared and
signed.
b. concerned The  Semior  Deputy | Partially
Accountable Officers Administrator for Support | implemented
file their request for Services, Atty. Ramon O.
relief with the COA; Agregado has instructed
and Pgen. Orlando M. Madella
to instruct the concerned
LED Mounted Police to
file request for relief from
property accountability.
¢.  Accountant book-up The ~ Accounting | Fully
the costs of the (i) Department will | implemented
nine cavalry horses at immediately prepare the
their appraised value necessary adjusting entries
after receiving the to derecognize the dead
appraisal request from work animals and set up
the Veterinary the same as Due from
Consultant; and (i) 19 Officers and Employees.
dead animals. They will immediately
provide COA with a copy
of the Journal Entry
pertaining to adjustment as
soon as said Journal
Voucher is prepared and
signed,
7. The accuracy, | CY
existence and obligation as | 2015
assertions to the Accounts | AAR
Payable balance amounting to | Finding
P130,720,992.02 as  of | No.7

September 30, 2015 could not
be determined due to(a)
varianee of P22,644,580.58
between the accounting and
creditors’ records
representing 8.29% of the
account balance as at said
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Observations and
Recommendations

Ref.

Management Comments

Status and
Reason
for Partial/Non-

date; and (b) non-moving
balances of P 10,893,602.94.

We recommended that the

Manager, Accounting
Department

a. coordinate with the 13
creditors whose
accounts differ with
those of the SBMA
subsidiary ledgers
(SLs);

b. reconcile the net
understatement of
P10,845,512.96 in the
balances of creditors
accounts per creditors’
records and SBMA
SLs and effect
necessary adjustments
thereon;

c. exert efforts to
establish the validity of
the five accounts
whose balances had
been unchanged since
CYs 2013 to 2015; and

d. update the data base on
the creditors to ensure
accurate
data/information  on
creditors.

Separate confirmation will
be done by management.
Once replies are received,
these will be endorsed to
the Departments
concerned  for  their
appropriate action.
Adjustments will be made
where necessary.

AP Maintenance
Administrator, Ms. Mayra
DL Begosa, will update the
present addresses of the
SBMA creditors through
the use of their current
contract, sales invoices,
billing statements,

collection/official receipt,

| Partially
| implemented

| Partially

Implementation

Partially
implemented

implemented

Partially
implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 4 of the

2016 AAR
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Observations and
Recommendations

Ref.

Management Comments

Status and
Reason

for Partial/Non-

Implementation

and other corroborative
current documents. This is
to avoid same situation
encountered in the past
wherein the confirmation
letters were returned due to
unknown address.

8. Copies of contracts
together with the documents
Jorming part thereof for
projects  costing at least
P35,591,608.33 were not
submitted to the Audit Team as
of December 31, 2015
contrary to COA Circular No.

| 2009-001 dated February 12,

2009 which resulted in the
delayed audit action and
identification and correction
of errors therefrom.

We recommended that the
Property Officer fumish the
Audit Team copies of
contracts, among  others,
documents  forming  part
thereof within the period
required by COA Circular
2009-001.

CY
2015

Finding
No. 8

Management  submitted
the certified true copies of
the documents.

Fully
implemented

| programs,

9. The SBMA failed to
comply with the laws and
regulations on  planning,
budgeting, implementation of
activities  and
projects (PAPs) and the
preparation of
accomplishment  report on

Gender and  Development
(GAD).

CYy
2015
Finding
No. 9
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Status and

Observations and Reason
Recommendations Ref. | Management Comments for Partial/Non-
Implementation
We recommended that the:

a. Chairman of SBMA Management replied that | Partially
allocate complete funding since personnel including | implemented.
and include GAD in the the Expense Account
strategic ~ planning  to Managers are still going
facilitate full attainment of through the
objectives in the pursuit of comprehensive training on
gender equality and the Harmonized Gender
women’s empowerment and Development
within the context of the Guidelines HCDG, they |
agency’s mandates; have requested the (PCW)

through email

b. SBMA-GAD  Focal correspondence addressed | Partially

Point (i) exercise careful to Mr. Macario Jusayan | implemented

planning in  identifying

priority gender-issues,
setting realizable targets, and
designing workable

activities towards achieving
the sot targets and be
cautious in preparing GAD
report to include necessary
and exclude unnecessary
expenditures in the conduct
of GAD PAPs; (ii) carry-out
the plan to its fullest extent
by utilizing the budget
allotted to ensure the full
implementation of the GAD
Plan; (iii) exercise care in the
preparation of AR for
accurate and precise
reporting on GAD-related
PAPs; and (iv) seek approval
from Philippine Commission
on Women (PCW) on the
additional activities to be
implemented to ensure that
the GAD budget is expended
only for duly approved
PAPs;

that they will not include
the attributed projects on
the 2015 GAD
Accomplishment Report

pending completion of

training of all personnel.

Also, they have deferred
all aftributions including
salaries of the LED
Women’s Desk and GAD
Focal Points  System
members, as this requires
documentary support to be

submitted to the PCW_

through GMMS.

Further, the 2015 GAD
Accomplishment Report is

still under review by the
PCW.

95




e

Observations and
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Ref,

Management Comments

Status and
Reason
for Partial/Non-
Implementation

¢. Accountant  submits
the necessary supporting
documents and satisfactory
explanation to support the
propriety, exigency and
authority of the expenses
incurred/paid for GAD-
related activities.

Partially

| implemented

Reiterated in
Observation
No. 11 of the
2016 AAR

10. Due to lack of plans to
mitigate the risks of loss or
reduced clienteles, the SBMA
apparently  neglected  the
operation and maintenance of
the Subic Bay International
Airport (SBIA) resulting in (a)
non-functional organizational
structure  of SBIA; ()
idle/obsolete/unmaintained
equipment  and  facilities
costing  of at  least
P54,667,827.65 representing
86.63% of the overall airport
equipment; and (¢} loss of
income opportunity caused by
lack of comprehensive tourism
marketing plan as evidenced
by the decrease in passenger
and aircraft movements by
82.78% and 44.31% of
performance levels,
respectively, in CYs 2008 to
2015.

We  recommended  that
Chairman and Administrator:

a. rteview the airport’s
labor force by carefully
regarding the current

manpower situation as

CY
2015
AAR
Finding
No. 13

SBMA replied that an-
airport itself does not
generate nor create traffic.
It 1s a gateway. If traffic

Partially
implemented
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Implementation
well as goals that each has, comes, economies open
effecting  scrutiny on and then the trickledown
details,  number  of | effect. Local marketing
employees with clear roles alone would not measure
in department, long term up. It would take a national
trend consideration for policy to turn around the
changes, examination of downward spiral of SBIA.
work load in connection The premier airport in
with projected Manila is fully congested
modification and budget as well as ifs airspace and
requirements; in the point of view of air
safety, it calls for urgent
b. assess the performance solution. In spite of the | Partially
of the existing airport 7.94% growth in the | implemented
equipment, analyze their country’s aviation sector,
costs and benefits to SBIA remains extremely
determine  whether to underutilized. According |
repair or replace them, to management, solutions
whichever is  more to these quagmires are
advantageous; and beyond SBMA’s sphere of
control. They recognized
c. carry-out well the need to review and | Partially
coordinate efforts with the correct the SBIA’s current | implemented
concerned  departments staffing  structure  to
contributing to the conform with the |
implementation of the International Civil

marketing strategy for the
airport and clearly
distinguished the scope
and limitations of their
roles in advancing the
common goal of the
agency and that of the
airport.

Aviation Organization’s
proper - manning of
personnel. However,
SBMA has to improve the
SBIA’s infrastructure such
as its communication,
navigational aids and

surveillance equipment in |

anticipation of the traffic
that may come as NAIA
prepares  to  decongest
itself.

Recently, new proponents
engaged in Maintenance
Repair Overhaul (MRO),
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Fixed Based Operations
(FBO), charter flights and

aviation  school  with _

considerable millions in
investments submitted
business proposals
including the construction
of enormous hangars at
idle developable areas.

SBIA responded to meet
their : operationa
requirement by securing
Doppler Very High Omni

Range (DVOR)  and|

ground to air spare parts
from Clark International
Airport Corporation
(CIAC). Additionally, X-

ray  machines  fiom ]

Department of
Transportation and
Communications

(DOTC)/Office for

Transportation Security
(OTS) will soon be
transported from Tacloban
to SBIA to replace all
defective units at no cost to
SBMA and at opportune
time.
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